Public Document Pack

Oldham

Council

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER PANEL
Regulatory Committee

Agenda
Date
Time
Venue

Notes

ltem No

1

Thursday 16 June 2022

5.30 pm

Lees Suite, Civic Centre, Oldham, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires any advice on
any item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect
his/her ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul

Entwistle or Peter Thompson in advance of the meeting.

2. CONTACT OFFICER for this Agenda is Peter Thompson Tel. 0161 770
5151 or email Peter.Thompson@oldham.gov.uk

3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS — Any member of the public wishing to ask a
guestion at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the
question is submitted to the Contact officer by 12 Noon on Monday, 13
June 2022.

4. FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may
record / film / photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and the
press are not lawfully excluded. Any member of the public who attends a
meeting and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional
Services Officer who will instruct that they are not included in the filming.

Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private
meeting is held.

Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law
including the law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection
Act and the law on public order offences.

MEMBERSHIP OF THE TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER PANEL IS AS
FOLLOWS:
Councillors Salamat, Woodvine, S Bashforth, Murphy and Ahmad

Appointment of Chair

To appoint a Chair of the Traffic Regulation Order Panel for the 2022/23


mailto:Peter.Thompson@oldham.gov.uk

10

11

Oldham

Council

Municipal Year.
Appointment of Vice Chair

To appoint a Vice-Chair of the Traffic Regulation Order Panel for the 2022/23
Municipal Year.

Apologies for absence

Urgent business

Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair.
Declarations of Interest

To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at
the meeting.

Public Question Time

To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s
Constitution.

Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 6)
The minutes of the meeting held on 17" March 2022 are attached for approval.

Representations to Proposed Disabled Persons Parking Places Order — Various
Locations (Pages 7 - 72)

The purpose of this report is to consider all representations received to the
introduction of disabled persons parking places at various locations in the
Borough.

Grange Avenue, Werneth — Objection to Traffic Regulation Order (Pages 73 - 96)

The purpose of this report is to consider six objections to a proposal for
prohibition of waiting restrictions to be introduced along Grange Avenue,
Werneth.

Ladhill Lane and Oak View Road (Ladhill Bridge), Greenfield — Objections to
Traffic Regulation Order (Pages 97 - 112)

The purpose of this report is to consider two objections to a proposal for
prohibition of waiting restrictions to be introduced at Ladhill Bridge, Greenfield.

S257 Town and Country planning Act 1990 — Diversion of Definitive Footpath
119 Saddleworth, Treetops Close, Dobcross, and S53A Wildlife and Countryside
Act 1981 Modification of the Definitive Map & Statement (Pages 113 - 128)

To seek approval to the making of a Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map



Oldham

Council

and Statement Modification Order for Footpath 119 Saddleworth, Treetops
Close, Dobcross as detailed in the report.



This page is intentionally left blank



Present:

Agenda Item 7

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER PANEL
17/03/2022 at 5.30 pm

Councillor Davis (Chair) o!;glﬂgfn
Councillors C. Gloster, Salamat, Woodvine and Briggs
(Substitute)
Also in Attendance:
Alan Evans Group Solicitor
Kaidy McCann Constitutional Services
Liam Kennedy Highways & Engineering
Mark Kenyon Councillor Saddleworth West and
Lees

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor
Brownridge.

URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of urgent business received.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest received.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
There were no public questions received.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

Resolved that the minutes of the meeting of the Traffic
Regulation Order Panel held on 20" January 2022 be approved
as a correct record.

S$257 TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 -
DIVERSION OF DEFINITIVE FOOTPATH 26 OLDHAM,
LAND OFF KNOWLS LANE, OLDHAM, AND S53A
WILDLIFE AND COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981 MODIFICATION
OF THE DEFINITIVE MAP & STATEMENT

The Panel considered a report that sought approval for the
making of a Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map and
Statement Modification Order for Footpath 26 Oldham, land off
Knowls Lane, Oldham.

The Panel were informed that the route of Footpath 26 Oldham
was shown on attached plan (764/A4/226/1). The path
commences off Rhodes Hill South of Thornley Brook following
an easterly route to its junction with Footpath 25 Oldham for
approximately 480m. The existing route runs through
undeveloped land. The description of the current route was
given in Schedule 1, to theprgﬁ%rtlThe diverted path was also



shown on the plan and followed points A-C-D-B. The
description of the diverted route was given in Schedule 2, to the
report.

The existing alignment of the Footpath would be directly affected
by the development being constructed by the applicants.

The required highway signage, from the metallised road and the
way markers along the route would be paid for by the Applicant.

Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 the Council must, in
the exercise of its functions have due regard to the need to
advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic (which includes disability) and
persons who do not share it. In considering this application it
was assessed that the current route of Footpath 26 Oldham was
not accessible to wheelchair users as it is uneven, unpaved,
muddy, and often steep and narrow in parts, so it did not provide
equality to disabled persons. A diversion route could not be
created that would be entirely level and without steps owing to
the topography of the area. Any member of the public accessing
the Thornley Brook valley on foot is met with a steep inclined
approach and as a result, users of the footpath had to be able to
navigate initial slopes and steps to be able to walk the footpath.
The proposed diversion route and the provision of timber framed
steps and flagging at steep points would improve access for all
non-wheelchair users. As the existing footpath was not
accessible to all wheelchair users, the proposed diversion would
not result in any additional loss of access to all wheelchair
users.

If the order were to be confirmed it would be necessary to
modify the Definitive Map and Statement for Footpath 26
Oldham. The Council has an obligation to continuously review
the Map and Statement. The Public Rights of Way (Combined
Orders) (England) Regulations 2008 allowed the Order-making
Authority to make a Combined Order for a diversion proposal
and Definitive Map and Statement Modification. The current
wording for the Definitive Statement was given in Schedule 3
and the amended wording was given in Schedule 4, to the
report.

An objector attended the meeting and was permitted to address
the Panel on this application.

A Saddleworth West and Lees Ward Councillor attended the
meeting and was permitted to address the Panel on this
application.

The applicant attended the meeting and was permitted to
address the Panel on this application.

Options considered:

Option 1: to approve the recommendation.

Option 2: not to approve thﬁrecomﬂ]endation.
age

Oldham

Council



Resolved that, as per the recommendation, the Public Path
Diversion and Definitive Map and Statement Modification Order
for Footpath 26 Oldham be approved under section 257 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and section 53A of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.

DEFINITIVE MAP MODIFICATION ORDER S53 -
WILDLIFE AND COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981 CLAIM TO
REGISTER A PUBLIC BRIDLEWAY FROM STANDEDGE
FOOT RD TO HUDDERSFIELD RD, DIGGLE

The Panel considered a report that sought approval for the
making of a Definitive Map Modification Order in respect of a
route which ran between Standedge Foot Road and
Huddersfield Road, Diggle.

The application was received in respect of the application route
which was claimed to be a bridleway. However, unusually, the
Application was

not supported by any User Evidence Forms showing the use
made of the application route. The application route was not
recorded on the Definitive Map and Statement for the area and
was not identified on either the draft or provisional maps
prepared in the early 1950’s. Numerous maps had been
provided by the British Horse Society (BHS) in support of the
application. However, no User Evidence showing the use made
of the route by horses had been submitted. The BHS has been
requested to provide user evidence but has refused to do so and
had requested that the application be determined based on the
map evidence alone.

Options considered:

Option 1: to approve the recommendation.
Option 2: not to approve the recommendation.
Option 3: to withdraw the application.

RESOLVED that, the application be withdrawn to allow the
Landowners to have notification of the application.

PUBLIC PATH EXTINGUISHMENT AND DEFINITIVE MAP
AND STATEMENT MODIFICATION ORDER S118
HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 — EXTINGUISHMENT OF PART OF
FP118, SADDLEWORTH — MOUNT LANE/HUSTEADS
LANE, DOBCROSS AND S53A WILDLIFE AND
COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981 MODIFICATION OF THE
DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT

The Panel considered a report that sought approval to make a
Public Path Extinguishment Order for part of Footpath 118,
Saddleworth.

The application was received from the residents of The Old
Vicarage, Streethouse Lane, Dobcross via their agent Roundhay
Properties Ltd for the extinguishment of part of Footpath 118,
Saddleworth which was sitUa@gen3heir land, under Section

Oldham

Council



118 of the Highways Act 1980. The line of the path passed close
to the property at The Old Vicarage. The Government had
issued ‘Draft Guidance on the diversion or extinguishment of
rights of

way that pass through gardens, farmyards and commercial
premises’. The Guidance describes the problem of Public Rights
of Way which pass through contained spaces, such as private
gardens. It states that ‘Members of the public may not be
comfortable following a path through a contained space of this
type because doing so may be infringing on the privacy of a
houseowner’. Such path alignments can deter people from
exercising the public’s right to walk along the path. In addition,
the line of the path had been blocked for many years by an
outbuilding/garage. The residents of The Old Vicarage,
Streethouse Lane, Dobcross had been in discussion with the
Council for some time about resolving these issues.

The diversion of the path away from The Old Vicarage was
originally proposed as a combined diversion with part of the
nearby Footpath 185 Saddleworth under section 257 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990. However, following
discussions with representatives of the Ramblers Association
and the Peak and Northern Footpath Society, it has been
agreed that the most appropriate action to take was for the
residents to apply to have the branch of Footpath 118
Saddleworth which passes through their land stopped up under
Section 118 of the Highways Act 1980.

Options considered:
Option 1: to approve the recommendation.
Option 2: not to approve the recommendation.

RESOLVED that, as per the recommendation, the Public Path
Extinguishment and Definitive Map and Statement Modification
Order for footpath 118 Saddleworth (part) be approved under
Section 118 of the Highways Act 1980 and Section 53A of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.

PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION AND DEFINITIVE MAP AND
STATEMENT MODIFICATION ORDER S$119 HIGHWAYS
ACT 1980 - DIVERSION OF DEFINITIVE FOOTPATH 185
SADDLEWORTH (PART), AT MOUNT SORREL, MOUNT
LANE, DOBCROSS AND S53A WILDLIFE AND
COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981 MODIFICATION OF THE
DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT

The Panel considered a report that sought approval to make a
Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map and Statement
Modification Order for Footpath 185 Saddleworth (part) at Mount
Sorrel, Mount Lane, Dobcross.

The application was received from the residents of The Old
Vicarage, Streethouse Lane, Dobcross via their agent Roundhay
Properties Ltd for the extinguishment of part of Footpath 185
Saddleworth (part) which was situated on their land, under
Section 118 of the Highway2a@€1980. A diversion was

Oldham

Council



originally proposed together with the diversion of part of

Footpath 118 Saddleworth. However following discussions with

the Peak and Northern Footpath Society, it was considered that

the proposed diversion detailed in the report would be more Oldham
appropriate diversion route. The applicant proposed a diversion Council
within the boundaries of their land which was significantly more

direct, with improved connectivity to Footpaths 117 & 181

Saddleworth and would negate the use of the footbridge on the

current route which was in a poor state of repair. Users of the

diverted route would not be deterred from using the route, which

could occur if using the existing alignment as it passed between

property and buildings at Mount Sorrel.

Options considered:
Option 1: to approve the recommendation.
Option 2: not to approve the recommendation.

RESOLVED that, as per the recommendation, the Public Path
Diversion and Definitive Map and Statement Modification Order
for Footpath 185 Saddleworth (part) be approved under section
119 of the Highways Act 1980 and section 53A of the Wildlife
and Countryside Act 1981.

The meeting started at 5.30 pm and ended at 6.44 pm

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

©

Oldham

Council

Report to TRO Panel

Representations to Proposed Disabled
Persons Parking Places Order — Various
Locations

Portfolio Holder:
Councillor A Chadderton, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods

Officer Contact: Deputy Chief Executive — People and Place

Report Author: Andrew Cowell, Traffic Engineer
Ext. 4377

16 June 2022

Reason for Decision
The purpose of this report is to consider all representations received to the introduction of disabled
persons parking places at various locations in the Borough.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the proposed disabled persons parking places are introduced in
accordance with the schedule in the original report except for the bays at Harper Street, South Hill
Street, Albany Street, Kilburn Street and John Knott Street.

Page 7



TRO Panel 16 June 2022

Representations to Proposed Disabled Persons Parking Places Order — Various Locations

1

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

Background

A report recommending the introduction of 25 disabled persons parking places at various
locations in the Borough was approved under delegated powers on 16 December 2021.
The proposal was subsequently advertised and several representations were received.

A copy of the approved report is attached at Appendix A and a copy of the representations
are attached at Appendix B.

Representations
Representations were received in relation to the 5 proposed parking places below.

38 Harper Street, Oldham

10/12 South Hill Street, Oldham

15 Albany Street, Oldham

3 Kilburn Street, Oldham

John Knott Street, Lees (Rear of 112 St.John Street)

The Council were informed that the applicant at Harper Street had sadly passed away.
Therefore, this proposed parking place will be removed from the scheme.

The Council were informed that the applicant at South Hill Street had off-street parking.
This was verified by inspection. Residents with access to an off-street parking facility do
not qualify for a disabled parking place. Therefore, this proposed parking place will be
removed from the scheme. The applicant has been informed.

The Council were informed by the applicant at Albany Street that they intend to sell the
property and therefore no longer require the proposed parking place.

Two letters of objection were received to the proposed parking place at Kilburn Street. In
summary the objectors state that as the bay will extend across their frontage this will make
their property unsaleable They also state that the bay is not required as the applicants car
is always parked outside their own house. The neighbours are respectful and don’t park in
that space.

The Panel should consider whether or not to introduce this parking place based on the
objectors comments.

Six letters of objection were received to the proposed parking place at John Knott Street.
In summary, the objectors state that:

o the proposed location for the sign/post is private land

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 8



the bay would be better located on St John Street

o there are few on-street spaces and the length of the bay would reduce the
availability of spaces further

¢ the location breaches Rule 243 of the Highway Code which states DO NOT stop or
park opposite or within 10 meters of a junction.

o anumber of deliveries have been turned away when vehicles have parked close to
the double yellow lines on John Knott Street
concerns over emergency vehicle access

e existing problems with waste disposal vehicles unable to gain access
the narrow road width is not suitable for a disabled person to access a vehicle

In light of the objections and in particular the concerns over the proximity of the bay to the
junction and the difficulty in positioning a sign and pole, we support its removal from the
scheme and for an alternative location to be found. The applicant would be informed
accordingly.

3 Options/Alternatives

3.1 Option 1 — Do not introduce the disabled persons parking places on Harper Street, South
Hill Street, Albany Street, and John Knott Street but introduce the proposed disabled
persons parking place on Kilburn Street.

3.2 Option 2 — Do not introduce the disabled persons parking places on Harper Street, South
Hill Street, Albany Street, Kilburn Street and John Knott Street

4 Preferred Option

4.1 The preferred option is Option 1.

5 Consultation

5.1 These were detailed with in the previous report.

6 Comments Of Medlock Vale / Werneth / Alexandra / St Mary’s / Waterhead /
Saddleworth West and Lees / St James’ / Coldhurst / Royton South / Chadderton
Central Ward Councillors

6.1 The Ward Councillors have been consulted again and Councillor Birch supports Option 1.

7 Financial Implications

7.1 These were dealt with in the previous report.

8 Legal Services Comments

8.1 These were dealt with in the previous report.

9 Co-operative Agenda

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 9



9.1 In respect of introducing the proposed disabled persons parking places, there are no Co-
operative issues or opportunities arising and the proposals are in line with the Council’s
Ethical Framework.

10 Human Resources Comments

10.1 None.

11 Risk Assessments

111 None.

12 IT Implications

12.1 None.

13 Property Implications

13.1 None.

14 Procurement Implications

14.1 None.

15 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications

15.1 These were dealt with in the previous report.

16 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications

16.1 These were dealt with in the previous report.

17 Equality Impact Assessment Completed?

17.1 No

18 Key Decision

18.1 No.

19 Key Decision Reference

19.1 Not applicable.

20 Background Papers

20.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance with
the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972. It does not include
documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined by the Act:
None.

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 10



21 Appendices

21.1  Appendix A — Approved Mod Gov Report
Appendix B - Copy of Representations

APPENDIX A

APPROVED MOD GOV REPORT

Delegated Decision

Report of: Deputy Chief Executive, People and Place

Officer contact: Andrew Cowell, Traffic Engineer
Ext. andy.cowell@unitypartnership.com

19 November 2021

Reason for Decision
The purpose of the report is to seek approval to implement disabled persons parking
places at various locations around the Borough.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the proposed disabled bays detailed in the Schedule at the end of
the report be introduced.

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 11



Delegated Decision

Proposed Disabled Persons Parking Places Order — Various Locations

1

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

3.1

4.1

Background

Oldham Highways receives approximately 70 applications annually for on-street
disabled parking places from disabled residents who have difficulty parking close to
their property due to the presence of parked vehicles. It was considered by Oldham
Highways Traffic Management Team that due to the number of requests received
that suitable criteria be adopted by the Cabinet Member for consideration of
applications and funding secured to implement successful applications. The criteria
has recently been updated and further funding secured to introduce a limited number
of bays in 2021.

The first Tranche of applications have now been processed, locations inspected and
a list of 25 successful applicants determined. Applicants that do not qualify under
the Council’s criteria have been notified in writing.

A second Report will follow in the New Year that will request the approval of the
successful applications contained within remaining backlog of 82. This will form
Tranche 2 of the current proposal.

The criteria can be found in the Guidance Notes in Appendix 1.
Options/Alternatives

Option 1: To approve the recommendation.

Option 2: Not to approve the recommendation.

Preferred Option

The preferred option to approve is Option 1.

Justification

Many disabled residents have difficulty parking close to their properties due to the
presence of parked vehicles. This can cause considerable stress and cause further
physical suffering. It is considered that the only effective way to help disabled
residents is to provide on-street disabled persons parking places near to their
property. This will enable these residents easier access to their properties and

improve their mobility and quality of life. It should be noted that any person
displaying a blue badge can park within a disabled persons parking place.

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 12



4.2 In order to ensure that new on-street disabled parking spaces work effectively, a
Traffic Regulation Order is implemented, so the facility can be enforced by the
Council’s Civil Enforcement Officers under decriminalised powers.

5 Consultations

5.1 G.M.P. View - The Chief Constable has been consulted and has no objection to this
proposal.

5.2 T.f.G.M. View - The Director General has been consulted and has no comment on
this proposal.

5.3 G.M. Fire Service View - The County Fire Officer has been consulted and has no
comment on this proposal.

5.4 N.W. Ambulance Service View - The County Ambulance Officer has been consulted
and has no comment on this proposal.

6 Comments Of Medlock Vale / Werneth / Alexandra / St Mary’s / Waterhead /
Saddleworth West and Lees / St James’ / Coldhurst / Royton South /
Chadderton Central Ward Councillors

6.1 The Ward Councillors have been consulted and the Chadderton Central ward
councillors are happy to support the proposed introduction of disabled parking space
at Bexhill Walk.

7 Financial Implications

7.1 This proposal will see the introduction of 25 disabled parking bays across the
Borough. The cost of this proposal is shown below:

£
Advertising Costs 3,000
Signs/Poles 10,000
Lining 7,000
TOTAL 20,000
Annual Maintenance Costs (calculated October 2021) 2,400

7.2 The advertising and road marking/signage costs of £20,000 will be funded from the
Highways Operations — Unity budget.

7.3 The annual maintenance costs estimated at £2,400 per annum will be met from the
Highways Operations budget. If there are pressures in this area as the financial
year progresses, the Directorate will have to manage its resources to ensure that
there is no adverse overall variance at the financial year end.

(Nigel Howard)
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 13



8.1

8.2

9.1

10

10.1

11

111

12

12.1

13

13.1

14

Legal Services Comments

Section 32 (1)(b) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 gives local authorities the
power by order to authorise the use as a parking place of any part of a road within
their area. It must appear to the Council that the parking places are necessary for
the purpose of relieving or preventing congestion of traffic. Under section 35 of the
Act, the Council may impose restrictions on the use of the parking places and in
particular, the vehicles which may be permitted to use them.

In addition to the above, under section 122 of the Act, it shall be the duty of the
Council so to exercise the functions conferred on them by the Act as to secure the
expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic (including
pedestrians) and the provision of suitable and adequate parking facilities on and off
the highway. Regard must also be had to the desirability of securing and
maintaining reasonable access to premises, the effect on the amenities of any
locality affected and the importance of regulating and restricting the use of roads by
heavy commercial vehicles so as to preserve or improve the amenities of the areas
through which the roads run, the strategy produced under section 80 Environmental
Protection Act 1990 (the national air quality strategy), the importance of facilitating
the passage of public service vehicles and of securing the safety and convenience
of persons using or desiring to use such vehicles and any other matters appearing
to the Council to be relevant. (A Evans)

Co-operative Agenda

In respect of the provision of Disabled Persons Parking Places, there are no Co-
operative issues or opportunities arising and the proposals are in line with the
Council’s Ethical Framework.

Human Resources Comments

None.

Risk Assessments

None.

IT Implications

None.

Property Implications

None.

Procurement Implications

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 14



14.1

None.

15 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications

15.1 Energy — Nil.

15.2  Transport — Nil.

15.3  Pollution — Nil.

15.4  Consumption and Use of Resources — Nil.

15.5 Built Environment - Minor alteration to visual appearance of area.

15.6  Natural Environment — Nil.

15.7 Health and Safety — Nil.

16 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications

16.1  The provision of disabled parking places will ease concerns for disabled residents
but the facilities may effect community cohesion due to the reduction in on-street
parking that will result.

17 Equality Impact Assessment Completed?

17.1 No.

18 Key Decision

18.1 No.

19 Key Decision Reference

19.1 Not applicable.

20 Background Papers

20.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in
accordance with the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act
1972. It does not include documents which would disclose exempt or confidential
information as defined by the Act :
None.

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 15



21 Appendices
21.1  Appendix 1 — Guidance Notes

22 Proposal

22.1 ltis proposed to introduce disabled persons' parking places, in accordance with the
schedule below:

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 16 0



ORINARCE SLITVTY LJZERGT; 18 Cooan coovlpst mmd bt dfpsn 300° drdrmecs Survey oanos 01000 v258

Slgn meuessd an LG 3 al back al Taotwsy

DIAG 1028.3 (&5 x 1.8m)

frize Aevklon daals By [cradion] Dum
Lo NiE
Qldham MBC
e
Unhyﬂﬁ'lr‘lﬁrﬂ“iﬂ Provlsan -:-fIZII?Ia_I;Iq?:I Par-]rq_lﬁl:-a-:es ADORESS:
Fllz Rof: 758 =Fhase i1 Grendon Awenue, Oldham
Dvaram by Dt Purpase ol lawue
+ o+ frfameatkn
[T Seabe dl Ad slee awing Fu.
HIGHWAYS & ENG|NEER|NG [al: Bl ; ,
Harti furw Heus, Chog ke, Ol dhias OL0 TR f\:n.\.-l 1500 4?.‘.&4’1643.‘ 1
Bawd
oy F

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

11

Page 17



ORIAARCT SUTNEY L|SERCE; 8 Coomn copyrlpit smd dulbsan ot 700 Ordnomce: Sorvry lomnon (1 BETR58

Fia= Qekden datsle Sy [adten] caw

Unltypartnership

Qidham MEC

Provlsan of Dlsabled Pardrg Spaces
Fliz Ref:

fi 759 = Fhase 9

ADORESS:
14 Shlel Clse, Cldham

QMS/799/Phase9

g:\common\dec_rec\371

Chvaram Lry €T Puipase &l [ases
AG 9= Irformatlon
CRudd by [T Beale al ALl “aadag) ko, A
HIGHWAYS & ENG|MEER|NG &R ik Dl
et P Houss, Cheigrakie, Oldhas OL1 1Y W"‘E‘ﬁw D“?qq‘ 1:500 4?“!\.4” ﬁ'd-S.IIE '
BREEE B2 (2L

16.05.22

Page 18

12



DRIRARCE SUNNTY L ZERETS 0o cxorlost wma dwisins fosmn 200" Drérmecs Sy Jomnon 01 002288

Swominaraya
Templa

# iy -
| Pkl da el af Baundary of Mas, 38 & A0 | "

",

rres| Ausldon data ks By |cridiord Dum
[£ 173 BLE
i Qidham MEC
Unltypartnership Pravlsar of Dlsabled Pardrg Saaces ABORESS:
Flla Riof: 753 = Phase 9 38 Harper Sireet, Cldham
Coriram Ly Dt Puipsris =l Teses
A o8-+ fermatlen
CRikind by Tt Beale al AL alee ey b,
HIGHWAYS & ENGINEER|NG B3 it Bl
v farw Heouse, Cheapakia, Oldhas OL7 1Y m““‘f o Dt 13500 4?.".&4”6431'3
GS 13 Ee
LiI¥eaz
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

13

Page 19



RINARCE SUTVEY LISERIT; 8 Coomn cooyrlot and dubitsina ot 2007 Ordrncs vy oo 010005888

Skan mount=d an pole al fronl of footway

DlAG 10783 (6,6 x 1,8m)

friae Anaddon datals By |ohdtond Due
L H
Qldham MBC
I
Unhyﬂﬁrlﬂﬂrﬂ"‘ip Pravisan -:-fllllsla_lglq?:l Pardrg Spaces ADORESS:
Flle Raf: 793 -Fhase 3 45 Kasalek Awanue, Oldham
w7 €] ST T
A o8- Irfarmatln
ek by Dt Trale al A alea Aoy b
HIGHWAYS & ENG|NEER|NG 55 it Bl ;
et fuirw Howrsa, Clhsipakia, Ol dhis OL7 WY ’--F""\-"'l:jl-'-;'.\ Nﬁl i 1:500 dT'Jﬁ'd"f1Eq 3-""'1'
[¥K 7R
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

14

Page 20



DRIFARCE SUIWEY L|CEREE; 6 oo czoyviost med dhistama dp=n 200" Orimsecy Sorvey omnon 010002258

Shan mourded an posl al back ol obway |
E Dintind
Duiabya
Anadery
[

40

S

DIAG 1028,3 (8.8 = 1.8m)

I

Yarklng o start 1 melrs north of the gable eed of Mg, 12

JFis: Aevldon daialks By |Sridtony Due
[0 THe
Oldham MBC
Ier
- - W el
Unhyﬂarlﬂﬁrﬂ"‘”] Pr:n-.-lsf'.-_r"-gfllqlll?la_lglﬁ:l I"‘-;a'u_lr-]rq_lspa-:es ADDRESS;
Pl il r = Fhase 10 South HIl Strees, Oldhan
Cwaram Ly |E7ET) Pupese =l swr
A 08-3 rfemeatken
T Tt Beats al A2 alea
HIGHWAYS & ENGINEER|NG L [l
Hasaturw House, Cheagalia, Oldhas OL1 18y r"':""'",fl_";" NE:I - 1500
G et

QMS/799/Phase9

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 21

15



ERIRARCT SLINEY LSERE, 1B e el amd st on 200" Ordimcs Sorvey floarcs 01522288

o
@]
3
Z
@,
B
iy
-

| Skan mourted an post al frant of fectway

Ao daa ks By fond tery Oue

Qidham MEC

Unltypartnership

Provlsan of Disabled Pardng Spaces
Fliz Raf: ]

759 = Phase £

ADDRESS:
90 Balien Streed, Cldham

QMS/799/Phase9

g:\common\dec_rec\371

Ciraram Ly Chitea Purpass =l Tesee
AC 09-H rfamatkn
ke By Dt Seade al &4 alea ey P, as,
HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING 45 [ig Bl ;
s farw Hourss, Crsigribla, Oldhas ©07 19 faprraa by N'"_‘:I N 13500 ATIA4/18437 '
G [P
[5i 7 [ElE R S, 0311

16.05.22

Page 22

16



NIRRT SUIWEY LCERCT; 8 Coown copylpit smd dubisana ot 200" Srédrumcy Sorvy lomon (01 505868

| Slgn mounted an posl al ianl of Toodway

P

Tt
Py
[

ke
f:-’a
Q
%
A
R
DN

Ty

frees Resblon datals By |Sridiond Dule
(1] THe
Qliham MEC
e
- - W L]
UnhyijEi'lﬂﬂrf&ﬁlLJ Pravisan -:ufllllslal:rlq?:l Pardrg Spaces ADORESS:
Flie Ref: 7599 = Phase 9 3 Onehan Avenue, Okdham
Chara Ly £ Fupase ol fasee
A 0971 ffermatkn
Rk by Tt Seale al Ad alm g b, TH
HIGHWAYS & ENG|MEER|NG 54 [0l , ,
et Farw Hiowrss, Chaigrabia, Oldhass OL1 1Y r"m""',fl_";"' NE‘:I . 1500 4?'-'&""1".16"1 3-'8 '
L CLrd
Ll zas R EEE PEN]

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

17

Page 23



DRIFARCE SUIWEY L|CEREE; 0o cxovfost md s o 300" Ordrmecs Sorvy oo 01 002288

)

-\'"‘i Iarklng to starl ol end of double yelow Ines

kbl

.
&
&
& r
& 8=
&
o
@

Slgn mounted on post al rear of Saoteny

s Apsbdon damls By |Tragditpry Dele
L i’
Qldham MBC
I o
Unltypartnership Pravlsap of Disabled Pardng 5 ADORESS:
¢ His rovlsan of Dlsabled Pardng Spaces )
yPx M Flla Rt 153 = Phass 9 Blsmarck Street, Cldham (Apalcant 223
Waterlae Street, OldFam)
T b7 £ T T
AC 093 rfematln
Tk By Tt Trale al o2 alee I g -
HIGHWAYS & ENG|NEER|ING £5 [ig: B ,
Hataturw Mo, Cheigrikla, Oldhas OL1 1Y r.-w”'ikl-ij N'{":I N 1i500 47IA41643/9 \
£ Litng
%06 e LY 5E) E, 031

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

18

Page 24



IIRIRARCT SUPWEY LSERETES B Comn ol amd debsiinn rloin 200" e Sorvy oarcs 01 B 288

g
&
N
-":'_“T
o
)
&
O

Blgn mounied on post &t front of foobwary

SALISBURY ROAD

ay,

ToF T DlAz 10203 (58 = 1.8m)
g

X
;'-éf,.""ll | Mtk lrg to start af and of double yollow Ines |

~t

8g

&
&
N
()
$
&
E:
g

Jrlas Aeldon datals By |Crhddord Dule

Unltypartnership

(L uig
Qldham MBC

Iree
ADORESS:

Provlsan -:fDI?IaH&j I"ar-]rr;_lﬁpaces
Flla Rl &) Cranbroak Siresl, Cldnam

753 = Phase £

[Err [T Puipaie &l ease
AL

09 rfermatlen
Cnwchd By £ Heale al Ad alee awing .
HIGHWAYS & ENG|MEER|NG 55 i) e
s farw Heurss, Croigribla, Oldhass ©07 18 r"""""lfl_'-i'-‘ N'{‘:I N 13500 4784184310
e o

QMS/799/Phase9

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 25

19



RINARCE SLIVEY LCERCE; 18 Cown capyrlgrt mnd abitsina ot 200" Ordmincs Survay foaros 010000858

&
&

AL

&

$

&
B
&

Mg,
Elgr raunted on oozt ot frord of foobwary {{IJMG }?
(@)
4D

[
Fealcars
wd
) G
Y F "-—-{ DIAG: 1028,3 (8.8 % 1,8m)
Q
S 4
& §
; 5
& &
O Q
Jrias| Revhion datals By |Srhdiond Due
L H
Qldham MBC
|
Unhyﬂa'lr‘lﬁrﬂ“iﬂ Pravlsan of Dlsabled Pardrg Spaces ADORESS:
Fliz Ref: 7538 = Phase 9 12 Cleeve Road, Oldham
Dvaram by Dt Purpase ol lawue
AL o+ frfameatkn
SR ek g LT Geale al fa sloa Aoy
HIGHWAYS & ENG|NEER|NG 5 [ad: Bl ; ,
Hatiitarw Howis, Chaigakia, Oldhas OL1 1KY r"w“,j;j l'\tgl P 1:500 4F'IA4'I1643'I1 1
- : [0
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

20

Page 26



CRIRARCE SUPNEY LIZEREE; B Coown cooyrlpst mmd dubsta ot 300" Ordrmecs Sorvey omnoa 01000w088

Dol 10628.3 (6.5  1.8m)

oz Aesdedon datals By |Sradtond Due
El §ig
Qidham MEC
[P
Unhyﬂa'lﬂﬂrﬂ“iﬂ Provlsar -:-fDI?Ia_Iqu?:I Par-]rr;_lﬁl:-a-:es ADORESS:
Flla Rafi 7594 = Fhase 95 Erlc Street, Oldisam
Coraram Ly £ Fupase <l fasee
AL 8- frfemmatlen
FETIE 1T Srale al A slea Ay b
HIGHWAYS & ENG|MEER|NG 45 [z Bl , o
Heat Fuirw Heuies, Crosig e, Ol dhiss OL1 1Y r"w“,_f:ij f\:i'-'.\.\.:l i 1:500 47“'-"!""'1"'1‘]‘1 3'I12
o
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22
21

Page 27



RINARCE SUNEY LSERCT; B Comn cooyrlgrt nnd dubstsio ot 2007 Ordmincs Sumvay fomrcs 010005858

N

| Skan mourdsd an posl I vege

e Aeahion drnk: By [t Jren] e
G | T
Qliham KBC
[P
i - VIRESS:
Unh}f{'] artners nip Pravlsan of DI?Ial:vlq?:l r’ardrq_lﬁl:-al:es ADORESS:
Flle Ref, 755 =Fhase 106 Wlémear Averue, Oldham
Divaram Ly |E75T] PFuipsse =l Tasee
AL o8-+ frfermatkn
[T T 7] Trals 4l o2 aloa anleg T
HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING &R [ e
et Fairw: Horsa, Chaigrabia, Oldhass OL7 I8 r"w“,_fl? f\iﬁl i 1,500 4?”&'4"1‘]4 3"14

QMS/799/Phase9

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 28

22



CRIFRARCE SUPNEY LZERET; 0 Coown cxoyrfpst mmd dubstna ot 200" Ordrmecs Sorvey omnoa 01000 w088
— — 1t H ' |I ] {
II;. ;: ' — -
|I i
I "
TOWERS STREET
~ e ;
R Lttt B o | uy | o :
[T 1, | \ | ~ |\ '
| L V1 " |I———_j‘___-'| e
| \ 1 | [ 1 | D
b1l 1" ®
| |I II (. | | I| | o U
— - | i
I|_1| 111 1 II_I If_l__' . m
|I |__|| L_|I L= || 'II I |I _|| ] z
| | | 1 | V—+"1"
P . Sy 1 | .
——|| -II_ - - I I ———_II l o
{ | ] |—__||_ w1 -Jj
T | | | oo Mmoo |
-——'II II |I | |I_ —ll—___]l [ T{ ! II || e meninilad o pad & Troed ol Toobway |-
1 1 ' - — -
| | L S I > [~ e
| | \ ——
| 1
i | L | Lo |
II| |I Markng to start 1,5m south of gable and of Mo, 56 |-—__|'__"__ 2
H | - | ——t 1 | ]
1
|
|
b | Vol T A
| |t
S — |
! '
= Aesldcn datals By |oradiend Cum
=L BUE
Qidham MEC
[Frequet
Unltypartnership Pravlsar, of Dlsabled Pardrg Spaces ADORESS:
Flle Rof: 75 = Phase 3 54 Colboan Strest, Oldharm
[ T Rl
AL o8-+ lrfermatln
e By v I E EC e
HIGHWAYS & ENG|NEER|NG 55 it Bl
Hatitirw Houss, Choapakia, Oldhass 0L THY WT‘EW Da?q‘r 13500 4?.".#!.4;1 643.” E
[FHEEEE

QMS/799/Phase9

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 29

23



ORDREHCE SURWET LCENTE. £ xwe comyach and dotabase rohes ZE21 Do Savesy Reerce DY B0
AR | AN e T~ OSE e
| CLOSE '["
LU craneen O0SE
—'-|I ll_ ——h | II :-_}. '. | . P I| |

- |

|earking nal 1o obstuc Tetpahy | s L || r |I_ I——_’Il

U SR T 14__4

|II |I . '; Ir_ 5_ ___l |

. R N e s S

\ | B _ [

RE | 1

' | . —— '

\ |1 o) | —

| 15 i L L—my

R |

\ |

i | | '
| - | |
3 II L ___II. ] || |I
\ e Ll
| A L | | ,
| 1 |
III ]
/ \: v II—
R 1 v II
[ - e I| I; !I_ |I |
- Foire s, Sirin & me Joriface] Dain
W Tiie
Cidram MBC
ot
Unitypartnership Proniscn of Disabled Parking Spaces AoprEEs
: ) Bl Cobden S3real, Oldham
ECO T EC RO
A J8.21 information
TTwceed by [omie | woek ol of 1is
HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SR 08-21
Harshaw Fouse, Chaipsise, Citham OL1 SHY W '-";9_21 1:500 4784164317
TTTehng Eayrheaad Bitye dan

QMS/799/Phase9

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 30

24



CRIRARCE SUIWEY LJSEREE; 0 Coown cxofpst mmd dubstma ot 00" Ordraecs Sorvay omnos 01000 w288

ker | |—' |

_| imardng rad 1o absinact fecspain) i
| T A A

175
to
79

.
St
/

| Tdarkng %o start next to footpath crossig grass verge |-' ;‘_ H_.-

7 =
¥

to

35
39

|23

[ 23

&

;S ,.-'"'Ha [P A
S s — g
LA [ =~/

I-" _.-' | Slgn mourded on post In vangs st 1m back from kera l\

[Frias Reskslon datals By [oradeoed Daw

Qldham MBC

ADORESS:

Unltypartnership

Provizon of Dlsabled Pard BCES
Fliz Raf: WBSP

QMS/799/Phase9

g:\common\dec_rec\371

PHEEEE

fi 753 =Fhase 30 Litlemoar Lane, Oklham
Tarm Ty T [T
A 092 Irfarmatln
el 5y s Teals a1 o2 alew EC e
HIGHWAYS & ENG|NEER|NG 55 [is: Bel
Hadti firw Housa, Chisapilda, Oldhiss OL1 Tk WT‘EW D‘?‘lq}" 13500 4?}'&4;1 Edﬂ.” 8

16.05.22

Page 31

25



CRIRARCE SUIWEY LJSEREE; 0 Coown cxofpst mmd dubstma ot 00" Ordraecs Sorvay omnos 01000 w288
K B

iz Apdon daals By |Sndton D
| =5 Wi
Qldham MBC
Unltypartnership Provisan of Dlsabled Pardng Spaces ADORESS:
Fllo Riof; 753 = Phase 9 7 Herbert Street, Oldham
Coraram Ly €7 Furpase ol fesoe
D a-F rfermatlen

A wkd By £ Brale al Ad slea iy fau, u.
HIGHWAYS & EMGINEER|NG 5= [ Nl
Mt farw Howrss, Chraipabia, Olehass OL1 1N WTEW Da?q.:!‘ 1500 4?."]&."-”1 643” g '

Cil¥zaz saz NE OGN

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

26

Page 32



ORIFARCE SUPNTY LJERET; 8 Coown cooyrlpst nd dubstans ot 200" Oréraecs Sorvey fomnoa 01000 w088

[Faes Aestelon datale By [orhdrond Dum

Unltypartnership

Qldham MBC

Pravlsan of Dlsabled Pardd aces
Fliz Ref: WSSP

ADORESS:

QMS/799/Phase9

T -
f1 153 =Fhase 3 Kloum Sirees, Oldham
Chvaram Loy £ Popase ol fawee
AD o8-+ Irfermatln

CFihnd by £ Heale al Al slea S T ..
HIGHWAYS & ENG|MEER|NG &5 [ Bl .
Hearti fuirw Hoarss, Chaigakia, Oldhas OL1 THY WT‘EW m?qq‘ 13500 4?}.&4;1 643.1 EU I

LilAsas Azl Bays 03N

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 33

27



CRIIARCT SLIEY LCERCTE 16 oo cmmvlost e chsbstina o sen 200" Ordmmes. vy foaren 010072888
"'\. - L N
. . ]

| Slgn mowstad on LIC b grass werge |

Markjng o start a boundary of Mos 13 & 15

ADORESS
15 Alary Streed, Cleham

4TiAA1B43721

Oldham MBC
]
2]

EL
[Froec:

Unltypartnership

HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING

Hers Fairw Howss, Cheapabia, Ol dhars OL 1 INY

16.05.22

c_rec\371

g:\common\de

QMS/799/Phase9

28

Page 34



ORIRARCE SLITVTY LJZERGE; 8 Cooan coorvlpit mmd bt dfgsn 3007 drdrmecs Sy flosnos 01000 w258

DHAG 10383 6.6 2 18]

Slgr maunied on LT al back of foclwey

u

%
pL)
m
[

(@)

O

v

(@)

Fees| Seviion datals By |ridrend Dum
% | o] i
Qldham MBC
IFvees
Unl‘ly:‘JEi'lr‘lﬁr:‘TiD Provlsan -:-fI:II?Ia_Ing:I I"ar-]rq_lﬁpaces ADDRESS:
Flls Rt 755 = Phase 31 Sundeld Raad, Oldham
Dvaram by Dt Purpase ol lawue
+ o+ frfameatkn
[T |7 Trale al o2 alee Aoy
HIGHWAYS & ENG|NEER|NG = [ad: Bl , o
Harti furw Housa, Clhaiga ka, Ol dhass O01 1 Rﬁl 1500 4?'A4|‘1hq 3"22
R 505N
QMS/799/Phase9

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22
Page 35

29



DRIRARCT SLITRTY L|ZERCE; 0 Cooan cxprvfpst mmd cduisims g 00" Orénmecs Ywevey foanos 01005258

S
&
=~
X
(%)
<
@)
O
T

| DIAG 1028.3 (4 8m bength x 3.8m wihos)

Emﬂd
A=

m
2
[
v
Slhgn mourted an posl It veige del 15 back Fam ke | r{.-{'ll
Q
0
1}
m

frias Aedon deale nd o
[#]=20] THe
Qldham MEC
e
Unh]{ﬂﬁ'lr‘lﬂrﬂ”iﬂ Provisan -:fDI;al:vlg:l Pardrq_lﬁl:laces ADDRESS:
Flle Rioft 1553 = Phase 37 Patierdale Clase, Okdham
[T Tt Puipass &l [asee
[T 089-3 rfermatln
TRkl By [£77) Trals al #2 alea anlog fu.
HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING 3 092 s
Hansfirw Houss, Cheigrakia, Oldhas OL1 T8 e le . 11500 47IA401843/23
Lafl
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22
30

Page 36



ERIRARCT SLINEY LSERE, 1B e el amd st on 200" Ordimcs Sorvey floarcs 01522288

| Slgr maunied on posl &l Froed ol Toolway

OlAG 1028,3 06,6 x 1,8m)

iz Apddon dan s By i tery Due
L i
Qidham MEC
Iree
Unhyﬂﬁ’lﬂﬂrﬂ“ip Provlsan -:-fDIsla_l':vlq?:l Pardrg Spaces ADORESS:
Flle Fuf: 799 - Phass 3 15 = 21 Barlow Street, Oldham
T b7 T ) P
AC 09-H rfamatkn
T Coivnes Soale al A2 alre awiey P,
HIGHWAYS & ENG|NEER|ING £5 i B ;
s farw Hourss, Crsigribla, Oldhas ©07 19 r.-w”'-ikl-ij NL"'_‘:I . 13500 47/A4/1643/6
=)
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22
31

Page 37



DRIFARCE SUPWEY LJZEREE; 0 oo cxpvfost smad duisms o 00" Jrérmecs Sy fomnes 01002288

ol
Oldham MBC
[P
Unltypartnership Provieap o Dlsabled Pardrg Spsces ABORESS:
F 1 H - 50 -
& Kenslngian Averue, Chadderten
Coraram Ly |£7T) Pupase =1 Taser
AC 8- rfermatlen

Ak Fy Caivis Beale al A alee ey b, =
HIGHWAYS & ENG|NEER|NG = it Bel
i Farw Houss, Chreiprabie, Olhass OL1 18Y m“:‘;’-‘" E“E“'qq‘ 1:500 4?}%@” ﬁ‘l-ﬂ.llzﬁ '
Ly [¥eaz SA5 ¥E. 05N

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 38 -



BRIRARCT SLINEY LSERCE, 1B e el amd dabsiina o 200" Ordimca Sorvey floancs 01 522088

I

Slon mounted on posl al back of foobway

Fi Wiy .

DHAG 1028, (6.8 2 1,8m)

e Sevbden data b By |Sradien e
(L Wig
Qidham MBC
IFvareer
Unhyﬂi"lrlﬂﬂrﬂﬂip Pravisan -:-fl:llsla_l':vlq?:l Pardrg Spaces ADDRESS:
Fliz Rof: 7599 = Phase 9 25 Perth Streel, Royton
Dwvaravn by |7 Furpass =l [ssee
& 9-3 frfematkn
vt Jeade al A2 alra mwity P,
HIGHWAYS & ENG|NEERING i Bl , e
Hatuir House, Gheigrabia, Oldhas 007 10 N"‘_"I 1500 47/A41643/24
1421
s R

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 39

33



ORIRARCE SLITSTY L|SERCE; 18 Cooan coprvlpit mmd st dfgsn 300 Ordrmecs Survey foanos 010007258

Markng to start 1,6m sowth of gable and of Mo, 16

|'l|l.l
/
_y
LA
£y
*-b'?’
%

P S
!.“ &:.‘o;u

Skan mounted an poest 8l franl of leobway

&
&
A
&
&
%.
@)
&

P
&y
&
I~
™ &
&y
A
S T
QA O
S 5
Q@ Ve
Q
= Reabdon datals By |radion] Dum
L H
Qldham MEC
IFvees
Unhyﬂa'lﬂﬁrﬂﬂiﬂ Pravisan of Dlsabled Pardrg Spaces ADORESS:
Fllz Ref: 759 = Phase 9 15 Thamas Strest, Lees
Dvawmn by Dt Purpase ol lawse
AL -+ fréarmatkn
HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING T R
et frw Heuis, Chagi b, Oldhas 001 WY r"w“,j;j f\iﬁl a4 1:500 4?”'!"4"16‘1 3-” 3
- - s R
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

34

Page 40



[RIINARCE SUITVEY LSERIT; 18 Cromn cxorlot and dabiina rfpsa 2007 Ordrancs Survey oo 010005888

(8

| DIAG 1028,3 (5.6 % 1.8m) | 1&%
3

s

5

&
&

{\'5_':'

| Slgn mounted an post al back of kit |

(PR
A

= Resblon datnls by [oraden] v
EL T
Qldham MBC
[Froec
Unktypartnership Provlsan of Dlsabled Pardrg S ADORESS:
dAr =] rovizan of Dlzabled Pardrg Spaces
y k Fllz Ref, 753 -Phasll:q*'l Jabn Knott Straed, Laes (Apallant 112 Salnt
dohin Slreet, Less)
[T 1] Toipmee T Tae
A o8- frfermatken
R [T Seale al i alra andeg hu.
HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING 55 (L s -
e farw Houss, Cronigralia, Oldhass DL TN ’--P’\-"'ilfl_'-i'.\ f\:i'-'.\.\.:l . 1:500 4?:"&'4{16‘: 3-' 1 J

QMS/799/Phase9

g:\common\dec_rec\371

Ll

16.05.22

Page 41

35



APPENDIX A

GUIDANCE NOTES

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

36

Page 42



Unitypartnership  oidham

Council

Oldham Council — Disabled Parking Bay Guidance
Introduction

This guidance specifies how Oldham Council will deal with applications for Disabled Parking
Bays on the highway.

Disabled parking bays are designated with white lines and a traffic sign. Anyone with a Blue
Badge can park in any disabled parking bay, even if it is outside your house (with or without
your permission).

Disabled parking bays require a legal order to be completed before they can be introduced.
Due to limited financial resources applications are considered annually should funding be
available. Applicants must therefore be aware that there is likely to be a delay in progressing
their application.

This legal process is also subject to a public advertisement period when objections can be
submitted.

Before You Apply

To qualify for a Disabled Parking Bay, you must:

« Have a Blue Badge valid for at least 12 months;

e Have received the Blue Badge under the conditions relating to mobility;

o Have ataxed and insured vehicle registered at the Blue Badger Holder’s address and
driven by a member of the household;

« Not have the use of an off-street parking place or the ability to accommodate one in
the grounds of the property.

The Applicant

Applicants should be receiving the Higher Rates of Mobility to qualify for a Disabled Parking
Bay and should have received their Blue Badge under the conditions relating to mobility.
They should also have a Blue Badge valid for at least 12 months.

There are two systems that are used for this purpose namely an Independent Mobility
Assessment (IMA) or a Personal Independence Payment (PIP).

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

37

Page 43



Oldham Council’s Blue Badge Team hold the information from the IMA and will confirm the
severity of the applicants mobility problems.

Blue Badge holders assessed through a PIP application will receive an award letter with a
score of 8 or more to confirm their mobility difficulties.

Applicants who receive their Blue Badge for hidden conditions (shown in Appendix A),
should not be considered for a Disabled Parking Bay unless a mobility problem can also be
identified.

The initial assessment criteria include a clause that if off-street parking provision can be
accommodated within the grounds of the property this should be pursued initially rather than
a disabled parking bay introduced.

The feasibility for this will be undertaken by Traffic Engineers during the on-site assessment
and will be appraised against the Council’s Light Duty Vehicle Crossing criteria, which is
published on the Council website. The provision of this facility will be discussed with the
applicant and if there are valid reasons why off-street parking cannot be progressed the
assessment criteria for an on-street disabled parking bay will progress.

The vehicle registered at the property should also be driven by a member of the household
and regularly stored at the address. The main driver should not reside at a separate address
and should not be the keeper of the vehicle.

The Location

Once it has been established the applicant meets the assessment criteria, consideration will
be given to where the disabled parking bay can be introduced on the public highway.

Disabled parking bays will be introduced outside or as close to properties that do not have
their own off-street parking provision.

Disabled parking bays are a minimum of 6.6 metres in length, which is longer than the length
of a car and the width of a terraced property. Whilst this is not generally too problematic
when there are only a few bays in the area, several bays introduced within a confined area
can adversely affect residential parking in nearby streets.

This guidance introduces the concept of Density Criteria for Disabled Parking Bays to
address the existing and future concentration particularly within residential terraced street
environments where upper limits should be placed on the number of bays introduced.

When considering new developments or existing streets which are being remodelled, the
Department for Transport Manual for Streets 2007 recommends that 5% of residential car-
parking spaces are designated for use by disabled people. This recommendation will be
adopted when considering applications along existing streets.

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

38

Page 44



Under this guidance the location of the bays within the street will also be considered. For
example, rather than concentrating the bays at one end of the street, it may be more
appropriate to space them evenly which would leave them accessible for all residents of the
street.

Where streets with existing bays have already met the new density criteria, further
applications will be rejected, and consideration will be given as to whether the existing
locations are appropriate.

Assessment of Applications

Appendix A

This contains details of hidden disabilities which may now grant people access to the Blue
Badge scheme. This means that people with less obvious health conditions will have the
same right to park in standard Disabled Parking Bays that you see on car parks and the
public highway, as those with physical disabilities.

APPENDIX A

What are the hidden disabilities?

While the catch-all phrase encompasses many health issues, the most common are listed
below:

ADHD

Amnesia

Anxiety

Autism spectrum disorder (ASD) and Asperger’'s Syndrome
Crohn’s Disease

Complex mental health disorders
Epilepsy

Huntington’s Disease

Irritable Bowel Diseases

Lupus

ME

Rheumatoid arthritis

Ulcerative Colitis

This is not an exhaustive list.

What are the new criteria?

The new criteria for Blue Badges will extend eligibility to people who:

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

39

Page 45



. cannot undertake a journey without there being a risk of serious harm to their health
or safety or that of any other person (such as young children with autism);

. cannot undertake a journey without it causing them very considerable psychological
distress;

. have very considerable difficulty when walking (both the physical act and experience
of walking).

What are the benefits?

Previously, local authorities could not exclude those with hidden disabilities but granting
permission was very much open to interpretation. The changes mean Council’s now have
much clearer guidelines.

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 46 0



SCHEDULE 1

Delete - Disabled Person’s Parking Place
Part Il Schedule 4

Oldham Borough Council (Chadderton Area) Consolidation Order 2003
As amended by the Oldham Borough Council (Variation of the Oldham Area, Lees Area,
Chadderton Area, Failsworth Area, Royton Area, Crompton Area and Saddleworth Area
Consolidation Orders) Minor Order 2004

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 5
Item No Length of Road Class of Days and Maximum No return
Vehicle hours of period of within
operation waiting
(CH269) Bexhill Walk, Chadderton
(West side) Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
persons
In the parking area located to vehicle
the rear of 7/9 Bexhill Walk
(CH250) Burnley Lane, Chadderton Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(South side) persons
vehicle
From a point 18 metres north
west of its junction with
Brierley Street for a distance
of 6.6 metres n a north
westerly direction (outside
57/59 Burnley Lane)
(CH269) Burnley Lane, Chadderton Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(South east side) persons
vehicle
From a point 11.2 metres
south east of its junction with
unnamed highway at the
gable of 233 Burnley Lane
for a distance of 6.6 metres
in a south easterly direction
(outside 229 Burnley Lane)
(CH250) Robinson Street, Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
Chadderton persons
(South side) vehicle
From a point 8.5 metres east
of its junction with Gorton
Street for a distance of 6.6
metres in an easterly
direction (outside 85
Robinson Street)
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22
41

Page 47



Oldham Borough Council (Crompton Area) Consolidation Order 2003
As amended by the Oldham Borough Council (Variation of the Oldham Area, Lees Area,
Chadderton Area, Failsworth Area, Royton Area, Crompton Area and Saddleworth Area
Consolidation Orders) Minor Order 2004

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 5
Item No Length of Road Class of Days and Maximum No return
Vehicle hours of period of within
operation waiting
(CR187) Cunliffe Drive, Shaw
(West side) Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
persons
In the parking bay area vehicle
outside property number 27
Cunliffe Drive
(CR187) Trent Road, Shaw Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(South side) persons
vehicle
From a point 14.6 metres
south east of its junction with
Valley Rise for a distance of
6.6 metres in a south
easterly direction (outside 41
Trent Road)
(CR146) Lees Street, Shaw Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(North side) persons
vehicle
From a point 37 metres east
of its junction with Vicarage
Street for a distance of 6.6
metres in an easterly
direction
(CR189) Duchess Street Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(North side) persons
vehicle
From a point 44.2 metres
west of its junction with Trent
Road for a distance of 6.6
metres in a westerly direction
(outside 62 Duchess Street)
(CR146) Derwent Drive, Shaw Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(South east side) persons
vehicle
From a point 27 metres
south west of its junction with
Alwin Road for a distance of
6.6 metres in a south
westerly direction
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22
42

Page 48




Oldham Borough Council (Oldham Area) Consolidation Order 2003
As amended by the Oldham Borough Council (Variation of the Oldham Area, Lees Area,
Chadderton Area, Failsworth Area, Royton Area, Crompton Area and Saddleworth Area
Consolidation Orders) Minor Order 2004

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 5
Item No Length of Road Class of Days and Maximum No return
Vehicle hours of period of within
operation waiting
(0.890) Bronte Close, Oldham
(South side) Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
persons
In the layby opposite 17 vehicle
Coleridge Road for a
distance of 3.6 metres
(0.858) Mayfield Road Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(North west side) persons
vehicle
From a point 42.2 metres
south west of its junction with
Vulcan Street for a distance
of 6.6 metres in a south
westerly direction (outside
75 Mayfield Road)
(0.858) Lower Edge Avenue Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(East side) persons
vehicle
From a point 113.7 metres
north east of its junction with
Coldhurst  Street for a
distance of 6.6 metres in a
north  easterly  direction
(outside 7 Gatley Brow)
(0.822) Osborne Road Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(South east side) persons
vehicle
From a point 19 metres north
east of its junction with
Coppice Street for a distance
of 6.6 metres in a north
easterly direction (outside 21
Osborne Road)
(0.858) Beaufont Drive Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(West side) persons
vehicle
From a point 10 metres north
east of its junction with
Roundthorn Road for a
distance of 6.6 metres in a
north  easterly direction
(gable of 251 Roundthorn
Road)
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22
43

Page 49



(0.785) Wyndale Road, Oldham Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(West side) persons
vehicle

From a point 10 metres north
of its junction with Crofton
Street for a distance of 6.6
metres in a northerly
direction

(0.936) Belgrave Road Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(South west side) persons
vehicle
From a point 74.3 metres
north west of its junction with
Honeywell Lane for a
distance of 6.6 metres in a
north  westerly direction
(outside 182 Belgrave Road)

(0.858) Stirling Street Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(North west side) persons
vehicle
From a point 74 metres north
west of its junction with Main
Road for a distance of 6.6
metres in a north westerly
direction (outside 22 Stirling
Street)

(0.922) Chapel Road Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(West side) persons
vehicle
From a point 14 metres north
west of its junction with
Devon Way for a distance of
6.6 metres in a north
westerly direction (outside
114 Chapel Road)

(0.936) Eskdale Avenue Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(East side) persons
vehicle
From a point 27 metres north
east of its junction with
Grange Avenue for a
distance of 6.6 metres in a
north  easterly direction
(outside 9 Eskdale Avenue)

(0.822) Latimer Street Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(West side) persons
vehicle
From a point 21.5 metres
north of its junction with
Ridley Street for a distance
of 6.6 metres in a northerly
direction (outside 24 & part
of 22 Latimer Street

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

44

Page 50



(0.890) St _Thomas Street South, Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
Oldham persons
(North east side) vehicle
From a point 37.4 metres
south east of its junction with
St Thomas’s Circle for a
distance of 6.6 metres in a
south  westerly direction
(outside 15/17 St Thomas
Street South)
(0.786) Crofton Street Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(North side) persons
vehicle
From a point 43 metres east
of its junction with Ashton
Road for a distance of 6.6
metres in an easterly
direction
(0.890) Lord Street, Oldham Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(South side) persons
vehicle
In the cul-de-sac end
adjacent to existing permit
parking bay

Oldham Borough Council (Lees Area) Consolidation Order 2003
As amended by the Oldham Borough Council (Variation of the Oldham Area, Lees Area,
Chadderton Area, Failsworth Area, Royton Area, Crompton Area and Saddleworth Area

Consolidation Orders) Minor Order 2004

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 5
Item No Length of Road Class of Days and Maximum No return
Vehicle hours of period of within
operation waiting
(L42) Nicholson Street, Lees
(East side) Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
persons
From a point 42.1 metres vehicle
north of its junction with High
Street for a distance of 6.6
metres in a northerly
direction (outside 8
Nicholson Street)
(L40) Warrington Street Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(East side) persons
vehicle
From a point 10 metres
south of its junction with
Princess Street for a
distance of 6.6 metres in a
southerly direction (outside 5
& part of 3 & 7 Warrington
Street)
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22
45

Page 51



From a point 35 metres west
of its junction with Further
Hey Close for a distance of
6.6 metres in a westerly
direction (outside 24
Medlock Way)

(L41) Hey Crescent, Lees Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(West side) persons
vehicle
The south west corner of the
parking area between 7 and
9 Hey Crescent (outside 7
Hey Crescent)
(L42) Medlock Way, Lees Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(North side) persons
vehicle

Oldham Borough Council (Failsworth Area) Consolidation Order 2003
As amended by the Oldham Borough Council (Variation of the Oldham Area, Lees Area,
Chadderton Area, Failsworth Area, Royton Area, Crompton Area and Saddleworth Area
Consolidation Orders) Minor Order 2004

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 5
Item No Length of Road Class of Days and Maximum No return
Vehicle hours of period of within
operation waiting
(F130) Dalton Street, Failsworth
(South side) Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
persons
From a point 24 metres vehicle
south west of its junction with
Ward Street for a distance of
6.6 metres in a south
westerly direction (outside
33 Dalton Street)
(F117) Main Street Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
(North east side) persons
vehicle
From a point 34 metres north
west of its junction with
Ashton Road West for a
distance of 6.6 metres in a
north westerly direction)
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22
46

Page 52




Oldham Borough Council (Saddleworth Area) Consolidation Order 2003
As amended by the Oldham Borough Council (Variation of the Oldham Area, Lees Area,
Chadderton Area, Failsworth Area, Royton Area, Crompton Area and Saddleworth Area
Consolidation Orders) Minor Order 2004

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 5
Item No Length of Road Class of Days and Maximum No return
Vehicle hours of period of within
operation waiting
(S151) Brownhill Drive, Austerlands
(North side) Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
persons
From a point 30 metres west vehicle
of its junction with Lower Turf
Lane for a distance of 6.6
metres in a westerly direction
(outside 31 Brownhill Drive)
(S179) Stonebreaks Road, Disabled 24 hours daily | No limit Not applicable
Springhead persons
(South west side) vehicle
From a point 12 metres
south east of its junction with
Woodbrook Road for a
distance of 6.6 metres in a
south  easterly direction
(outside 43 Stonebreaks
Road)

Oldham Borough Council (Royton Area) Consolidation Order 2003
As amended by the Oldham Borough Council (Variation of the Oldham Area, Lees Area,
Chadderton Area, Failsworth Area, Royton Area, Crompton Area and Saddleworth Area
Consolidation Orders) Minor Order 2004

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 5
Item No Length of Road Class of Days and Maximum No return
Vehicle hours of period of within
operation waiting
(R129) Church Street, Royton
(North side) Disabled 24 hours daily No limit Not applicable
persons
From a point 17.3 metres vehicle
north east of its junction
with Dunkerley Street for
a distance of 6.6 metres in
a north easterly direction
(outside 56  Church
Street)
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22
47

Page 53




(R101) Blackshaw Lane Disabled 24 hours daily No limit Not applicable
(North west side) persons
vehicle
From a point 40 metres
south east of its junction
with Saint Ives Way for a
distance of 6.6 metresin a
south easterly direction
(R100) Hall Street, Royton Disabled 24 hours daily No limit Not applicable
(West side) persons
vehicle
From a point 27 metres
north of its junction with
Brook Street for a
distance of 6.6 metres in a
northerly direction
(R134) Rochdale Road, Royton Disabled 24 hours daily No limit Not applicable
(East side) persons
vehicle
From a point 25.2 metres
north west of its junction
with Lakeland Drive for a
distance of 6.6 metresin a
north westerly direction
(outside 800 Rochdale
Road)
(R134) Roman Road, Royton Disabled 24 hours daily No limit Not applicable
(North side) persons
vehicle
In the parking layby
opposite 8 Roman Road
(R50) Hartington Court
From a point 38 metres
south east of Shaw Disabled
Street for a distance of Persons 24 Hours No limit Not Applicable
10 metres in a south Vehicle Daily
easterly direction having
a width of 4.8 metres
(R50) Hartington Court
The cul de sac end
having a width of 6 Disabled
metres and a length of Persons 24 Hours No limit Not Applicable
6.6 metres Vehicle Daily
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22
48

Page 54



SCHEDULE 2

Items to be deleted from the Principal Order at Part 1 Schedule 1
PROHIBITION OF WAITING

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5
Item No Length of Road Duration Exemptions No Loading
(0.890) Lord Street (North side) | At Any Time A, B1, B3, B4, C, E,
access from Henshaw K3
Street
(West side)
From a point 134 metres
south east of its junction
with Henshaw Street for a
distance of 18 metres in a
southerly direction
SCHEDULE 3
Items to be included in the Principal Order at Part 1 Schedule 1
PROHIBITION OF WAITING
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5
Item No Length of Road Duration Exemptions No Loading
Lord Street (North side) | At Any Time A, B1, B3, B4, C, E,
access from Henshaw K3
Street
(West side)
From a point 134 metres
south east of its junction
with Henshaw Street for a
distance of 21 metres in a
southerly direction
SCHEDULE 4
Oldham Area - Disabled Bays
Insert into Part Il Schedule 4
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 6
Item No Length of Road Class of Days and . No return within
vehicle Hours of Max_ln;unf]
Operation period o
parking
Grendon Avenue Disabled 24 Hours Daily No Limit Not Applicable
Oldham Persons
(North-west side) Vehicle
From a point 97 metres
south west of its
junction with Windsor
Road for a distance of
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22
49

Page 55




6.6 metres in a south
westerly direction

Shield Close, Oldham Disabled 24 Hours Daily No Limit Not Applicable
(South-east side) Persons
Vehicle

In the parking area at its
most south-westerly
point outside number 14

Harper Street, Oldham Disabled 24 Hours Daily No Limit Not Applicable
(North-east side) Persons
Vehicle

From a point 103
metres north west of its
junction with Manley
Road for a distance of
6.6 metres in a north
westerly direction

Keswick Avenue Disabled 24 Hours Daily No Limit Not Applicable
Oldham Persons
(North-east side) Vehicle

From a point 38 metres
south east of its junction
with Thatcher Street for
a distance of 6.6 metres
in a south easterly
direction within the
layby outside number

45

South Hill Street Disabled 24 Hours Daily No Limit Not Applicable
Oldham Persons

(West side) Vehicle

From a point 48 metres
south of its junction with
Greengate Street for a
distance of 6.6 metres
in a southerly direction

Bolton Street, Oldham Disabled 24 Hours Daily No Limit Not Applicable
(West side) Persons
Vehicle

From a point 14 metres
north of its junction with
Spinks Street for a
distance of 6.6 metres
in a northerly direction

Onchan Avenue Disabled 24 Hours Daily No Limit Not Applicable
Oldham Persons
(North side) Vehicle

From a point 10 metres
east of its junction with
Bolton Street for a
distance of 6.6 metres
in an easterly direction

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

50

Page 56



QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

51

Page 57



Bismarck Street
Oldham
(South-east side)

From a point 10 metres
south west of its
junction with Waterloo
Street for a distance of
6.6 metres in a south
westerly direction

Disabled
Persons
Vehicle

24 Hours Daily

No Limit

Not Applicable

Cranbrook Street
Oldham
(North-west side)

From a point 16 metres
north east of its junction
with Salisbury Road for
a distance of 6.6 metres
in a north easterly
direction

Disabled
Persons
Vehicle

24 Hours Daily

No Limit

Not Applicable

Cleeve Road, Oldham
(North-west side)

From a point 24 metres
south west of its
junction with Melling
Road for a distance of
6.6 metres in a south
westerly direction

Disabled
Persons
Vehicle

24 Hours Daily

No Limit

Not Applicable

Eric Street, Oldham
(North-east side)

From a point 15 metres
south east of its junction
with Red Hall Street for
a distance of 6.6 metres
in a south easterly
direction

Disabled
Persons
Vehicle

24 Hours Daily

No Limit

Not Applicable

Wildmoor Avenue,
Oldham
(South-east side)

In the parking area at its
most north easterly
point in the cul-de-sac
outside number 94

Disabled
Persons
Vehicle

24 Hours Daily

No Limit

Not Applicable

Cobden Street, Oldham
(East side)

From a point 42 metres
south of its junction with
Paulden Avenue for a
distance of 6.6 metres
in a southerly direction

Disabled
Persons
Vehicle

24 Hours Daily

No Limit

Not Applicable

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

52

Page 58



QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

53

Page 59



Cobden Street, Oldham Disabled 24 Hours Daily No Limit Not Applicable
(East side) Persons
Vehicle

From a point 46 metres
south of its junction with
Cranleigh Close for a
distance of 6.6 metres
in a southerly direction

Littlemoor Lane Disabled 24 Hours Daily No Limit Not Applicable
Oldham Persons
(South-east side) Vehicle

From a point 52 metres
north east of a point
opposite the north
easterly kerb-line of
Otago Street for a
distance of 6.6 metres
in a north easterly
direction

Herbert Street, Oldham Disabled 24 Hours Daily No Limit Not Applicable
(North-east side) Persons
Vehicle
From a point 79 metres
north west of a point
opposite the northerly
kerb-line of Adlington
Street for a distance of
6.6 metres in a north
westerly direction

Kilburn Street Oldham Disabled 24 Hours Daily No Limit Not Applicable
(South-west side) Persons
Vehicle

From a point 24 metres
north west of its junction
with Ripponden Road
for a distance of 6.6
metres in a north
westerly direction

Albany Street, Oldham Disabled 24 Hours Daily No Limit Not Applicable
(North-east side) Persons
Vehicle

From a point 37 metres
south east of its junction
with Rixson Street for a
distance of 6.6 metres
in a south easterly
direction

Sunfield Road Oldham Disabled 24 Hours Daily No Limit Not Applicable
(West side) Persons
Vehicle

From a point 95 metres
north of its junction with
Henshaw Street for a
distance of 6.6 metres
in a northerly direction

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

54

Page 60



Patterdale Close Disabled 24 Hours Daily No Limit Not Applicable
Oldham Persons
(West side) Vehicle
In the parking area at its
most northerly point
outside number 37
Barlow Street, Oldham Disabled 24 Hours Daily No Limit Not Applicable
(North-east side) Persons
Vehicle
From a point 12 metres
north west of its junction
with Hardy Street for a
distance of 6.6 metres
in a north westerly
direction
SCHEDULE 5
Chadderton Area — Disabled Bays
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 6
Item No Length of Road Class of Days and . iod No return
vehicle Hours of Mam;numk_perlo within
Operation ot parking
Kensington Avenue, Disabled | 24 Hours Daily No Limit Not Applicable
Chadderton Persons
(North-east side) Vehicle
From a point 38 metres
north west of its junction
with Baytree Avenue for
a distance of 6.6 metres
in a north westerly
direction
SCHEDULE 6
Royton Area - Disabled Bays
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 6
Item No Length of Road Class of Days and . i0d No return
vehicle Hours of Mamfmumk_perlo within
Operation ot parking
Perth Street, Royton Disabled 24 Hours No Limit Not
(West side) Persons Daily Applicable
Vehicle
From a point 35
metres north of its
junction with Heyside
for a distance of 6.6
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 61

55



metres in a northerly
direction

SCHEDULE 7
Lees Area - Disabled Bays
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 6
Item No Length of Road Class of Days and . i0d No return
vehicle Hours of MaX|fmumkper|o within
Operation ot parking
Thomas Street, Lees Disabled 24 Hours No Limit Not
(South-east side) Persons Daily Applicable
Vehicle
From a point 16
metres south west of
its junction with Albert
Street for a distance of
6.6 metres in a south
westerly direction
John Knott Street, Disabled 24 Hours No Limit Not
Lees Persons Daily Applicable
(South-east side) Vehicle
From a point 8 metres
north east of its
junction with Greaves
Street for a distance of
6.6 metres in a north
easterly direction
APPROVAL
Decision maker
2 Dated: 16" December 2021
- wj—}u"\_d______
Signed:
Cabinet Member,
Neighbourhoods
In consultation with
Signed: John Lamb Dated: 14" December 2021
Interim Director of
Environmental Services
QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

56

Page 62



APPENDIX B

COPY OF REPRESENTATIONS

Kilburn Street

- - ~eg Al oJooe Pofeiod
4 U..rrl-t"' t'ﬂ O, -u’\ Md.f -i:?‘
lj‘nbm treax , WOsIE nad dings, Odiham

!

(rond it 6 MOUN CONGUITON Do MLt
A¢ I%p@mﬁm for DAD SpALL N ot Tae

ot SR S L
‘ﬁw. Wwile T cgwwf‘fs wous?, anal
: Ul \notdors
o{!prﬁum gsuﬂﬂ Of.disﬂ‘lﬂ‘hm m&ﬂeJ\M&l, T
m\fﬁ-nﬂwe o2 po Sulch (ELLD
(o OV 7 ne . 3 ilpoam Sweat

oY :
b o tacredably gurpnted,
%m:ﬁjﬂ # g AT, ObOUE g PRPeE
el Conniith Beoe ond axoa2i)
bﬁuu; Mw‘ p&% Uvediat Flulbuom et for afen
Ao L Wouoe Wl lpean vaod cuNO~L
v vahneried 0 OLCADE oy Uty A S
Sap pre tRAdong o no. 3 L rad,
mwﬁmfﬂﬂf (0w it Tord Pumal v
pr ditaCriny oUride no.3 T con
oo UM UTOLARY O SueossT woure N
cean fuan Wouse tO Parld ufnzarld 2 loe )
T n beavTd onas Gl‘l ulblm oot M“‘Wd‘

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 63 >



ereclilo m,a.ng::lp-.,dm,n_d. cow §idoprode DO
L;Mﬁ ox ounleer 3 oo eld ,ond onad
USEPOegm AL -y ol T Spot.

f e todetad OV bl oodge 1
o Emﬁmw%&rmﬁm%
WAL ity R0 O (5 i rpod of-o

IM‘E o duTolelad E]'-"'ﬂ:em! Wwias e,
O w O WELFJLU QlBa

. - " Lo (1)
fOoane TEEURD &t "-‘I""ﬁ" k “
iM{}Fu.r;Hc_n_l_ﬁMj_— ordl préelenosic wAneA T (o0

. VDB TNOE Yo LoN
e MLT EdLﬂr?% {-mm‘tm:tmr? aun dutadpood
OF i OQPUICEBTA ™ cnd. DAZE 30 ad)
yl.k_t:.l LA {_-;}l._fa-{mf:-"wt‘l-ﬂ‘n.
g helle
Ir%wﬁfw - buae= T feu g
¢ A lpe WARONTRS TAL Y WPavety ofF &

] - 1
e 8T LA > Gpplicobien win effect,

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 64

58



Deac Sig \mAn e
wWe. 'ﬁ‘{"ﬁﬂmcrhvl oI Th \\Duﬂ ,?;-%Pmsei
Dl’:-hgruij: PEAE&:GN_S E’qawr-:c.l &.ﬁ:tc:i 5T
}]5' YLILRUR D STREET Feom Trhe MEdSuce~
™MeAT s Gw BN THIS  woulsp BRive, TE
TuranEn SPace RGHY 1d FronT of OUR_
House Fﬁﬂﬂfﬁgﬁ:’: LD My W our. OPirien
Howde el DEd . gue @ﬁv{”ﬁ&n\) VO SARE AR LE,
Trces 18 A8 So-uTe Vo Regxend oo A
o =thce As Te cpre In Puesh@n]
15 ENer  Trers - PN B £V S A0
EUTS  oe. o, R. ME D1 TRE @Uordgies
Hade, JTusw THe WO WSTW OF e Vauem DT
T wald BECORE. OETTiveg wWip Tre  Cac.
Wﬁmﬂu\ s kel oguen Te (el Tinsee
AR Weag T< TF ‘t’t‘tﬁlck\*ﬁ?c{_‘ Tﬁcu\v ARE
Browes \w By The OunNge of 6.3,
THe STeger WAS Tal vmork osls Tugn sfhcas
P D AViaT M oge Chofbuig Wewp RRiAK

ke o< ofr 1\,1... et 'v.r\!u:.1 Eﬂﬁ.\ T e Eﬁ&f‘xrﬁﬁg\.‘ﬂ"% e
Ca Mﬁ.#_--V\ BT A g._f’}ac,_g_ on THE STeREET
LR BeTVE O 9T T rt e WX oG,

TNOL T O

C-P\Rq-?_ QEADEES RPElfe - yiusSRD Offq::sf’:-i
Rebacems wiTa haeos farwina Agsa
f"ﬂf; EE o 1peavs,

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 65 >



John Knott Street

To Whom it May Concern

| write to you with my objection to the proposal of a 24 hour disabled parking bay on John Knott
Street, Lees, Oldham, reference proposal number: LIM/20509. There are a number of concerns
with this proposal which | will detail below, however | wish to highlight, this proposal was made on
4" February 2022. However, the notice for residents to object was not put up until the evening of
12" February 2022. Secondly, many attempts were made to contact your office on the details
provided on the notice. There was never a response received from you and it was not possible to
come and view the plans, and these had to be sourced another way without any support from your
office.

The proposed parking bay is proposed to be placed 8.9 meters from John Knott Street, this
breaches Rule 243 of the Highway Code which states ‘Rule 243 of the highway code DO NOT stop
or park opposite or within 10 meters of a junction.” Therefore, the proposed parking bay would
breach the highway code.

When turning into John Knott Street from Greaves Street, this is a blind corner, making it
dangerous as there would be limited passing space for oncoming cars to pull into. This would also
mean that when pulling out of the road, it would not be possible to sit on the left-hand side of the
road, whilst waiting to turn onto Greaves Street.

The Highway Code Rule 239 states: ‘Do not stop too close to a vehicle displaying a Blue Badge:
remember the occupant may need more room to get in or out’. The proposed parking bay is next to
a 4 foot fence, and to ensure there is enough room to pass the parked car the vehicle would need
to park up against the fence, and therefore one side of the car would be inaccessible. It is clearly
stated in the highway code those with a Blue Badge may require more room, however the parking
space is completely inaccessible on one side of the car.

The proposed parking space is a bin collection point. The bins are collected each Tuesday for
several residents on St. John Street and Greaves Street, and are regularly there for a few days
when not collected in. This would not be beneficial to a Blue Badge user to access the space as it
is not possible to get into the parking space when bins are at the collection point.

Land proposed where the Disabled badge sign will be to indicate this is a 24 hour disabled parking
bay, is private land. This Private land is not owned by Oldham Council, as previously also
confirmed by the Highways Department at Oldham Council (see attached email). Therefore, the
sign is proposed to be put on land that does not belong to Oldham Council but is registered with
Land Registry to ‘J.Collins’.

To implement a 24 hour disabled Parking bay will restrict the possible passing places on John
Knott Street and restrict access to some larger vehicles. Due to the width of the road, a number of
deliveries have been turned away when vehicles have parked close to the double yellow lines on
John Knott Street, in the area of the proposed parking bay.

The 24 hour Disabled parking bay is proposed for 112 St. John Street. There is land on St John
Street which does not breach the rules above. The land on St John Street, is closer to 112 St John
Street that the proposed land on John Knott Street.

The 24 hour Disabled Parking Bay would be more suitably placed on St John Street, closer to the
resident’s property applying for the 24 hour disabled parking bay. This is also not a bin collection
point and would allow access to both sides of the car, as there is no restrictive access on St. John
Street. A Disabled Parking Bay on St John Street would not require a sign to be placed on Private
land and would also not be in breach of Highway Code Rule 243: ‘Do Not stop or park within 10
meters of a junction’ as the double yellow lines would not allow this. The area on St. John Street
does not have a bin collection point and therefore access to the parking bay also would not be
restricted by bin collections.

In summary, | object to the proposal of a 24 hour disabled parking bay on John Knott Street due to
safety concerns, bin collection, accessibility of the 24 hour disabled parking bay, Highway Code

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

60

Page 66



breaches, restrictive access, no passing place and the proposal of using privately owned land
when there is a more suitable, less restrictive location for the 24 hour disabled parking bay which
also provides easier access and closer to the requesting party, 112 St. John Street.

Please find my objection to the proposed introduction of a 24 hour disabled bay on John Knott
Street. Please can you ensure my objection is correctly filed and collated, along with other
objections.

The reasons for my objection are as follows.

John Knott street is a single lane, cut-de-sac street, built up of 11 dwellings. Each dwelling has a
motor vehicle in their household meaning 11 vehicles need parking each night on John Knott
Street. This is not currently possible due to the small nature of John Knott Street. Introducing a 24
hour disabled bay, for somebody not residing on the street, would only make the parking situation
worse than it already is by reducing the available number of parking spaces by two bays.

Another factor contributing to my objection is the current crime statistics in our area. Owning a van
which is used for work purposes and already having experienced my work vehicle being
vandalised and broken into, multiple times, | feel parking on the street | live on to be a lot safer
than parking the van away from my home where the previously described incidents have occurred.
(St John Street)

Finally, If the proposed disabled bay is to go ahead, the vehicle would not be able to be parked on
John Knott Street and successfully be able to open both driver's and passenger doors, as this
would either be obstructed by number 1 Silverdale’s rear garden fence or mean parking a sufficient
distance from the fence and result in blocking access to John Knott Street.

My solution to the above application would be to provide a 24 hour disabled bay on St John Street,
outside the required property. This would mean the bay would be as close as possible to the
desired dwelling, enough space would be available to open both driver's and passenger doors
simultaneously whilst the vehicle is parked and this would not reduce the availability the residents
of St John Street have to fairly park their own vehicles outside their own property.

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

61

Page 67



To Whom it May Concern

As a concerned resident of John Knott Street | wish to highlight my objection to the
proposal of a 24 hour disabled parking bay on John Knott Street, Lees, Oldham,
reference proposal number: LIM/20509.

This proposal was made on 4% February 2022. However, the notice for residents to
object was not put up until the evening of 12" February 2022.

The proposad parking bay is proposed to be placed 8.9 meters from John Knott
Street, this breaches Rule 243 of the Highway Code which states ‘Rule 243 of the
highway code DO NOT stop or park opposite or within 10 meters of a junction.”
Therefore, the proposed parking bay would breach the highway code.

When turning inte John Knott Street from Greaves Street, this is a blind corner,
making it dangerous as there would be limited passing space for oncoming cars to
pull into. This would also mean that when pulling out of the road, it would not be
possible to sit on the left-hand side of the road, whilst waiting to turn onto Greaves
Street.

The Highway Code Rule 239 states: ‘Do not stop too close to a vehicle displaying a
Blue Badge: remember the occupant may need more room o get in or out’. The
proposed parking bay is next o a 4 foot fence, and o ensure there is enough room
lo pass the parked car the vehicle would need to park up against the fence, and
therefore one side of the car would be inaccessible. |t is clearly stated in the highway
code those with a Blue Badge may reguire more room, however the parking space is
completely inaccessible on one side of the car.

The proposed area is a bin collection point each Tuesday for several residents on St
John Street and Greaves Street and therefore a parking space would restrict access
to bin collection.

Land proposed where the Disabled badge sign will be to indicate this is a 24 hour
disabled parking bay, is private land. This Private land is not owned by Oldham
Council, as previously also confirmed by the Highways Department at Oldham
Council. Therefore, the sign is proposed to be put on land that does not belong to
Oldham Council but is registered with Land Registry to “J.Collins'.

To implement a 24 hour disabled Parking bay will restrict the possible passing places
on John Knott Street and restrict access to some larger vehicles. Due to the width of
the road, a number of deliveries have been twrned away when vehicles have parked
close to the double yellow lines on John Knott Street, in the area of the proposed
parking bay.

The 24 hour Disabled parking bay is proposad for 112 St John Streel There is land
on St John Street which does not breach the rules above. The land on St John
Street, is closer to 112 5t John Street that the proposed land on John Knott Strest.

| object to the proposal of a 24 hour disabled parking bay on John Knott Street due
to safety concemns, bin collection, accessibility of the 24 hour disabled parking bay,
Highway Code breaches, restrictive access, no passing place and the proposal of
using privately owned land when there is a more suitable, less restrictive location for
the 24 hour disabled parking bay which also provides easier access and closear to the
reguesting party, 112 St. John Streel.

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

62

Page 68



Please find below my objection to the proposed Introduction of a 24 hour disable bay on John
Knott Street. | request your Acknowledge receipt by return email of this my strong objection to this
proposal as set out below. Please ensure this Objection is filed and collated correctly against this
proposal along with all other Objections to the John Knott Street 24 hour Disabled parking please.
John Knott Street is an unusually narrow single lane residential street with a cul-de-sac at its end.
(The maximum width of John Knott Street at the proposed disable parking bay is 4.6 meters wide
without any vehicles parked with a car parked at this point this is reduced down to a maximum
passable road width of 2.60 meters).

My objections are as follows

Accident concern

| believe the proposed Disable parking bay being so close to the junction with Greave Street and
the blind entrance to John Knot Street would leave any Disabled person with reduced motor
function or mobility at great risk of possible injury when entering or leaving a vehicle at this
proposed site. Any access to a vehicle here would entail opening the driver side door into and
blocking the open narrow live lane for access or egress to said vehicle. Access into the vehicle via
the passenger door is impossible at this site. We the residence withess on a daily basis cars, taxis
and delivery drivers traveling at speed or reversing without due care into John Knott Street at the
very proposed site for the disabled parking bay. As there is no room for a footpath anywhere on
the named street. | know there is not a resident of John Knott Street that has not had a near miss
of being run over when walking out towards this junction due to vehicle entering the street blindly
and at speed.

Emergency Vehicle Access

| have a very real concern regarding Emergency vehicle access. Over the years | have been a
resident on this street (approx. 18 years) | myself have witnessed on several occasions when
emergence vehicles such as Ambulance and fire engines have been unable to gain access to
homes on John Knott Street again due to vehicles parked at the proposed parking site, any
vehicles parked at this point needs to be able to be removed very quickly for such emergency
vehicle access.

Services, Maintenance and repair Access

We the residence of John Knott Street regularly suffer almost weekly the inconvenience of having
services such as waste disposal vehicles unable to gain access, resulting in regular missed waste
collections due to the narrowed road width and badly parked vehicle at the proposed disabled bay
sighting. If slow or delayed access to a vehicle at this proposed site, | truly believe this would
further exacerbate this situation. Road maintenance, emergency sewer clearance and drain repair
vehicles have all had access issues regularly resulting in delayed or cancelled works, all due to the
above vehicles width and their inability to pass the very narrowed road width at the very proposed
24 hour disabled parking site.

Further more all the residence of John Knott Street suffers on an hourly basis from the
inconvenience and inaccessibility to and from our homes due to the extremely limited parking on
the road. Cars and van unable to find parking simply stop and block the road as the drivers then
simple leave their vehicles parked in the live lane and unattended. This coupled with the houses
who’s address is that of St Johns Street which then backing on to John Knott street also continue
to blocking access with there outwardly open gates and left out wheelie bins all blocking the live
very narrow lane, create such a problem that you rarely have a free journey in or out of the street.
Resident parking

| am sure many residents who may have objected to this Proposed 24 hour disabled parking bay
have focused on the very limited available on road parking (5-6 vehicle at the very most) on John
Knott Street. The size of the proposed Disabled Bay 6.6m would reduce this number by 2 vehicles!
Due to the fact John Knott Street is used by residents from all the surrounding streets, park their
vehicle on a long-term basis, some time for week without movement. We the residents of the 11
houses and council payers of John Knott Street are denied the convenience of parking on the
street that we reside on, we suffer the many inconveniences mentioned including having are own

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

63

Page 69



vehicle broken into, vandalised and valuable items stollen while parked on other streets in the
area. Some of the residents off John Knott Street have installed CCTV to combat this escalating
issue, providing a Disabled parking bay for a none, John Knott Street residence means in short, we
are providing security for others while our own vehicles are left vulnerable and out of view or ear
shot of the street resident or the very cameras we have installed.

After due consideration | believe that for individual’s safe access to their disabled vehicle,
convenience to their dwelling and visible security plus emergency vehicle access to all the homes
on John Knott Street, | believe the application for a 24 hour disabled bay be moved to the first
parking bay on St John Street, after the yellow lines and only one door away from 112. This
location is much closer to the disabled resident of 112 St John Street | believe the curb at this point
would require adjustment, this would then always offer safe pavement access in and out of the 24
hours a day.

To Whom it May Concern

| write to you with my objection to the proposal of a 24 hour disabled parking bay on John Knott
Street, Lees, Oldham, reference proposal number: LIM/20509.

| have a number of concerns with this proposal.

The proposed parking bay is proposed to be placed 8.9 meters from John Knott Street, this
breaches Rule 243 of the Highway Code which states ‘Rule 243 of the highway code DO NOT stop
or park opposite or within 10 meters of a junction.” Therefore, the proposed parking bay would
breach the highway code.

When turning into John Knott Street from Greaves Street, this is a blind corner, making it
dangerous as there would be limited passing space for oncoming cars to pull into. This would also
mean that when pulling out of the road, it would not be possible to sit on the left-hand side of the
road, whilst waiting to turn onto Greaves Street.

The Highway Code Rule 239 states: ‘Do not stop too close to a vehicle displaying a Blue Badge:
remember the occupant may need more room to get in or out’. The proposed parking bay is next to
a 4 foot fence, and to ensure there is enough room to pass the parked car the vehicle would need
to park up against the fence, and therefore one side of the car would be inaccessible. It is clearly
stated in the highway code those with a Blue Badge may require more room, however the parking
space is completely inaccessible on one side of the car.

Land proposed where the Disabled badge sign will be to indicate this is a 24 hour disabled parking
bay, is private land. This Private land is not owned by Oldham Council, as previously also
confirmed by the Highways Department at Oldham Council (see attached email). Therefore, the
sign is proposed to be put on land that does not belong to Oldham Council but is registered with
Land Registry to ‘J.Collins’.

To implement a 24 hour disabled Parking bay will restrict the possible passing places on John
Knott Street and restrict access to some larger vehicles. Due to the width of the road, a number of
deliveries have been turned away when vehicles have parked close to the double yellow lines on
John Knott Street, in the area of the proposed parking bay.

The 24 hour Disabled Parking Bay would be more suitably placed on St John Street, closer to the
resident’s property applying for the 24 hour disabled parking bay. This is also not a bin collection
point and would allow access to both sides of the car, as there is no restrictive access on St. John
Street.

In summary, | object to the proposal of a 24 hour disabled parking bay on John Knott Street due to
safety concerns, bin collection, accessibility of the 24 hour disabled parking bay, Highway Code
breaches, restrictive access and no passing place.

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

64

Page 70



For anyone that lives on our street or has visited our street, will know straight away that parking is
a challenge. So to find out that a potential disabled bay is being proposed to accommodate a
household that doesn’t live on our street is very frustrating. Looking at the proposed plans this will
take up a space that could fit two cars. Which will therefore limit the availibity of parking on our
road.

We are a young family and my partner works away a lot, so being able to park as close

as possible to our home is something very important to me. Not just for the convenience but also
for safety reasons. My usual parking space that | am able to park in most days is on fact the exact
spot in which is being proposed to be used as a disabled bay.

In addition, if this space is to be used for a disabled bay then it is also going to cause issues for our
bin collection. As this is where the bins for our street and also for some of the houses on Silver
Dale are collected from each week.

Surely disabled bays require access around the full vehicle and the spot in which is being
proposed is in fact directly next to a fence — surely this is restricted access? A solution to this
would be to in fact allocate the disabled parking bay outside the house in question whom in which
requires the disabled bay.

If you require any further information from myself please do not hesitate to contact me.

Thankyou again for passing my objections on to the relevant department.

QMS/799/Phase9 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

65

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

©

Oldham

Council

Report to TRO Panel

Grange Avenue, Werneth — Objection to
Traffic Regulation Order

Portfolio Holder:
Councillor A Chadderton, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods

Officer Contact: Deputy Chief Executive — People and Place

Report Author: Andrew Cowell, Traffic Engineer
Ext. 4377

16 June 2022

Reason for Decision
The purpose of this report is to consider six objections to a proposal for prohibition of waiting
restrictions to be introduced along Grange Avenue, Werneth.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the objections be dismissed and the proposal introduced as advertised in
accordance with the schedule in the original report.

Page 73



TRO Panel 16 June 2022

Grange Avenue, Werneth — Objection to Traffic Regulation Order

1

11

1.2

13

1.4

15

2.1

2.2

2.3

TM3/1019

Background

A report recommending the introduction of prohibition of waiting restrictions at Grange
Avenue, Werneth, was approved under delegated powers on 5" March 2020. The
proposal was subsequently advertised and six letters of objection and one supporting
letter were received.

A copy of the approved report is attached at Appendix A and a copy of the objections are
attached at Appendix B.

The proposal was promoted to address issues with obstructive parking along Grange
Avenue. Numerous complaints were received from local residents, pedestrians and
hauliers regarding parking along the route. Vehicles are regularly left parked obstructing
the footway and also contrary to the Highway Code, causing an obstruction to junction
visibility splays.

A letter drop to properties along Grange Avenue was carried out in 2020 which highlighted
the problems being caused by inconsiderate and obstructive parking. Despite this letter,
inconsiderate and obstructive parking continues and is considered a road safety issue.

Officers have previously investigated a scheme to introduce double yellow lines along the
full length of the route on the north eastern side, however this failed to gain the support of
Ward Members who were concerned about the loss of parking. This proposal will therefore
primarily address the issue of obstructive parking at junctions.

Objections

Six objections were received from residents of Grange Avenue. In summary, the objectors
claim that the proposal:

¢ will reduce the availability of on-street parking spaces in an area where there is
already a high demand

will affect their ability to park outside their homes

will affect elderly and disabled residents

will affect the value of their homes

is only required because of the Council’s planning decision to allow new houses to
be built opposite with insufficient off-street parking

One letter of support was received from a resident of Grange Avenue, although the
resident suggested that the length of restrictions were insufficient to address the issues of
pavement parking and requested that the proposal was extended.

The Council appreciates that there is a lack of on-street parking for some residents of

Grange Avenue. However, the Council is not responsible for providing on-street parking
but has a duty in respect of road safety matters.

g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 74 ’



24 The lengths of restriction proposed are not considered excessive and the proposal has
been scaled down. A scheme to address the issues along the full length of Grange
Avenue was not supported by ward members.

2.5 Whilst waiting restrictions can affect elderly and disabled residents, the individual
circumstances of residents cannot always be accommodated on the highway and the
Council must prioritise matters of road safety and access Disabled badge holders can park
on the restrictions for up to three hours and the restrictions allow for loading and
unloading.

2.6 The Council do not routinely treat every junction on the highway with restrictions. Where
we receive requests these locations will be investigated.

2.7 In relation to the new houses, the number of spaces for the development was deemed
sufficient enough not to give rise to a material increase in on-street car parking based on
Council planning policy and encouraging sustainable travel.

3 Options/Alternatives

3.1 Option 1 — Introduce the proposed restrictions as advertised.

3.2 Option 2 — Do not introduce the proposed restrictions.

4 Preferred Option

4.1 The preferred option is Option 1.

5 Consultation

5.1 These were detailed with in the previous report.

6 Comments of Chadderton North Ward Councillors

6.1 The Ward Councillors have been consulted again and no comments were received.

7 Financial Implications

7.1 These were dealt with in the previous report.

8 Legal Services Comments

8.1 These were dealt with in the previous report.

9 Co-operative Agenda

9.1 In respect of introducing prohibition of waiting restrictions on Grange Avenue, there are no
Co-operative issues or opportunities arising and the proposals are in line with the
Council’s Ethical Framework.

10 Human Resources Comments

10.1 None.

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

3

Page 75



11

111

12

12.1

13

13.1

14

14.1

15

15.1

16

16.1

17

17.1

18

18.1

19

19.1

20

20.1

21

21.1

TM3/1019

Risk Assessments

None.

IT Implications

None.

Property Implications

None.

Procurement Implications

None.

Environmental and Health & Safety Implications

These were dealt with in the previous report.

Equality, community cohesion and crime implications

These were dealt with in the previous report.

Equality Impact Assessment Completed?

No

Key Decision

No.

Key Decision Reference

Not applicable.

Background Papers

The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance with
the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972. It does not include
documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined by the Act:
None.

Appendices

Appendix A — Approved Mod Gov Report
Appendix B - Copy of Representations

g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 76



APPENDIX A

APPROVED MOD GOV REPORT

©

Delegated Decision Oldham

Council
Proposed Prohibition of Waiting - Grange
Avenue, Werneth

Report of: Deputy Chief Execulive - People and Place

Officer contact: Alister Storey, Traffic Engineer
Ext. 5766

3 March 2020

Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is 1o consider the inkroduction of prohibition of waiting
resincsons at locations along Grange Avenue and al vanous side road junctions along
the route to prolect drivers visibilty by removing the obstructive parking of vehicles.

Recommendation

It s recommended that no walting al any Sme (double yellow lines) restrictions be
intreduced on Grange Avenue and various side road junclions in accordance with the
schedule and plans at the end of this report.

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 77



Drelegaled Decmon

Proposed Prohibition of Waiting - Grange Avenue, Wemneth

1

1.1

12

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.8

4.1

TM3/1019

Background

Grange Avenue is an unclassified residential bao way street thal uns betwesn
the AGZ Manchesier Road and Chamber Road. The road is shresl |it and s

subpect to a 30mph speed limil and has foolways o both sides.

The properties along the roule are a mixiure af housing stock with vanying

amounts of off sireet parking  The majority of the cder properies have sither
off sireel parking o the front or the rear. A number of new properies have
recenily been bl fowards the College Avenue junclion, all thes= properties
harve off street parking.

Mumerous complaints have been recerned from local residents, pedestians and

hauliers regarding parking alang the route. Vehicles are regularly k=t Fmrh-:d
obstructing the footway and also contrary o the Highway Code, causing an
obstruction o junclion visibalily splays.

A lziter drop o properies along Grange Avenue was caried oul earlier this year
which highlighled the problems being caused by inconsiderate and obstructive
parking. The letier nofified residents that unless the pracics ended, thene would
be no other oplion than o ntroduce formal waiting resincions. Despibe this
letter, inconsiderate and obstructive parking continues and is considered a road
safely issue.

Officers have previously imeestigaled a scheme o inlroduce double yellow lines

the full l=ngth of the roule along the norh easiem side, however this faled 1o
gain the support of Ward Members who were concemed aboul the loss of
parking. The new proposals will address the E=sue o abstuctive parking at
juncions, howewer e =Esue of obstruclive parking of both sdes of e
carmagesay away from junclions will nesd o be monitonsd.

In wieew ol the above | i fell hal measuress recommended should be infoducad
o alleviate the problems being expenenced.

Options/dlternatives

Opfon 1: To approwe the recommendation
Opfon 2: Nol o approve the recommendalion
Preferred Option

The prefered option is Cplion 1

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 78



2.1

3.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

g.1

A

7.2

TM3/1019

Justification

In view of the obsiructve parking praclices laking place it s fell that the
infroductan of double yellow lines should be progressed.

Consultations

G.M.P. View = The Chief Constable has been corsulied and has no abjection
o this proposal.

TALEEL View - The Director General has been consulled and has no comment
an this proposal.

G.M. Fire Service View - The County Fire Officer has been consulted and has
no comment on this proposal

HW. Ambuilance Serdce View = The County Ambulance Officer has been
consulied and has no commend on this proposal.

Comments of Wemeth Ward Councillors

The Ward Councillors have been consulled and do nol wanl Grange Avenue
residenis 0 be unreasonably penalised bul understand the need o priolise
road safety. The idea is to improve visihility and acoess at the junclion along
ard al the enlrances o Grange Averue bul 'we hope it will nol inadvertenty

aeabe more inconsiderable (pavement) parking along Grange Averwe. We
would nol want to see more resincions along Grange Averue.

Response to Councillors Comments

Cwe 1o the cumrenl parking practices on Grange Avenuwe and the adjomning side
streets il is likely some dsplaced parking will ooour i this proposal s
successful Al this ime molorisis are parking directly &t the junctions creating
a highaay safely s=sue for motorists, not only with regards to visibilily when
entering and exiling the sde roads off Grange Avenue, bul also obstucling
manoeuntes through $he unchions especially for lager wehicles including
Emergency Servioe vehickes.

Should any displaced parking generale obsiructive foobway parking along

Grange Avenue, it may be necessary 1o consider the introduwcon af wailing
resirictions io slop thes practice.

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 79



d1

g2

8.3

e

TM3/1019

Fimancial Implications
The cost ol intraducing the Order is shown below:-

£

fdvertisement af Onder 1, 300
Intreduction of Road Markings 500
TOTAL 1,700
Anrual Manienance Costs (caioulawd Ociober 2013} 100

The advertising/road marking costs of £1, 700 will be funded from the Highways
Operations = Unity budget.

The annual manienance costs esimated &l €100 per annom Wil b= med from
the Highways Operations budged.  there are pressures in this area as the
financial year progresses, the Dirsciorale will have o manage its resources o
ermsure thal there = no adverse overall variance al the financial year end

{Miged Howard)
Legal Services Comments

The Coundl must be satisfied fal # s sopedient 1o make the Traffic Regulation
Order in order 10 avoid danger o persons or ather traffic using the road or any
ather road or far peeventing the Bkelibood of any such danger arising. or for
preventing damage 1o the road or lo any building on or near the road, or for
fadlitating the passage on the road or any other oad of any class of iaffic,
including pedesirians., or for preventing the use of the road by vehicular traffic
af a kind which, or its use by vehicular raffic in a manner which, s unsuitable
having regard fo the exsting characier of the road or adjoining properiy or fior
presering or improwving the amenies of the area through which the road runs.

In addilion lo the above, under saclion 122 of the Road Trafic Regulation Act
1884, il shall be the duty of the Council 5o o exercse the funclions conferred
an them by the Acl as o secure the expediious. convenienl and safe
mavemenl of vehicular and other raffic (ncluding pedestrians) and the
provision of suilable and adequale parking faclilies on and off the highway.
Regard musi also be had o the desirability of securing and mainlaning
reasonable acoess lo premises, the effect on the amenities of any locality
affected and $he mportance of regulating and resiricting the use of oads by
heavy commercal vehicles so as o pressne or improse the amenities of the
areas through which the roads run, the siralsgy produced under section 80
Emaronmental Prolection Act 1990 (e national air qualty sbrategy). the
impartance of fadlilating the passage of public service vehicles and af sscuring
the =alety and convenience of persons using or desiring bo use such vehicles
ard any other malters appeanng o the Counci 1o be relevanl. (A Evans)

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 80



10

10.1

11

12

121

13

131

14

14.1

18

151

16

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6
16.7

17

171

TM3/1019

Co-operative Agenda

In respect of this proposal there are no Co-operalive Ssues ar opportunilies
arising and the propasals are in line with the Council's Ethical Framewark.

Human Resources Comments

Hiane.

Risk Assossmeonts

Hane.

IT Implications

Nane.

Property Implications

Hane.

Praocurement implications

MHane.

Environmental and Health & Safety Implications

Enengy - Rl

Transpart = il

Pollution = Hil.

Consumgplion and Use of Resources — Mil.

Bult Environment - Hil.

Halural Ervironmend = Hil.

Health and Safely = The infodudtion of yellow lines al the locations dentified
in the plans at the end of this reporl, will create a safer emvironment for bath
malorisls and pedesinans.

Equality, community cohesion and crime implications

The infoduction of yellow lines may have a negabive eflect on Community
Cohesion as residents in this area will have o find alernative parking

arrangemenis. but highway safely @kes priorily over the use of the highaay Tor
parking.

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 81



18 Equality Impact Assessment Completed?

181  Ho

10 Key Decision

191 Mo

20 Key Decision Reference

201

Mol applcable.

21 Background Papers

The following s a =l of background papers on which this reporl = basad in

accordance with e requirements af Secion 1001} of the Local Govesnimend
At 1972, N does nol indude documents which would disclose sxempl or
caonfidenlial information & defined by the Ac:

21.1

Mone.
22 Proposal
221

the foliowing schedule and drawing numbser.

Schedige
Dirawing Mumber 4 7AW B4 £ 2

It = prapased thal a Traffic Reguiation Order be ntroduced in accomdancs with

#dd ta the Oldham Bormwgh Council (Odham area) Corsolidation Order 2003, Part 1,

Sehedule 1
Celumn 1 Column 2 Column 3 iColhunman 4 Column &
ltem Mo Length of Road Duration Exemptions Mo Loading
#1 Ay Time A, B, B3, B4,
{Marth sade] i, E.JLKS
Fram a poinl 929
melres south et of
ils junclion with A&82
Manchesler Foad
for a distance= of 8
mefres o a soulh
easiedy dirsclion
TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22
10

Page 82



iGramge Avenue
(Marih saded Karih
Eaxl)

Fram a ponl 11
melres wasl af ibs
junction with
Femiodme Courl ba
a poml 10 melres
souih easi of ils
junction with
Fermfedme Courl

A1 Ay Time

& B1, B3, B4,
C. E.LK3

Gramge Avenus
(Marh Eas=i sid=)

Fram a paml 10
mebres norfh wesl of
ils  junction with
Safurk Avenue bo a
point 10  melres
soulh =ast al ils
junction withn Sellirk
e nue

A1 Ay Time

& Bi. B3, B4,
C, E.J K3

irange Avenues
(Marh Eas=i sid=)

Fram a paml 10
metres norf west of
ils junction with
E=fdale Avenus o a
point 10  melres
soulh =ast al ils
junction wfith
E=kdale Avenues

&1 Ay Time

& BEi, B3, B4,
C, E.J K3

Gramge Avenues
i(Marth Easi side)

Fram ils junclion
wiithi Chambssr Foad
for a dislance of 14
melez in a north
wesl direclion

A1 Ay Time

A, B1. B3, B4,
C, E.LK3

TM3/1019

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 83

11



Crangs Avenus
(South side)

Fram a poinl B5E
melres south easi of
ils junction with AB.2
Manchester Foad
for a disiance of 28
mebres i a south
easiedy dirsclion

Al Any Time

A, B1, B3, B4,
C, E.LK3

Grange AveEnus
(Soulh Wes] sade]

Fram a poirnt 131.8
melres soulh east of
ils junction with AB2
Manchesier Road ta
a pomnl 157.5 metres
south =a=i al iis
junction with AS2
Manchesier Foad

A Any Time

&, B1, B3, B4,
., E.LKS

iranges Avenoes
(Soulth Eas] side)

Fram a paint 10
metres north west of
ils junction with
Wellngton  Avenue
o a pani 10 metres
south easl al ils
junction wwfith
Wellngton Avenue

A Any Time

&, B1, B3, Bd,
., E.LKS

Crangs Avenus
(South Easi side)

Fram a paint 10
mebnes norf wes] of
ils junction with
Coniston Averue b
il  junction  with
Chamber Road

Al Any Time

A, B1, B3, B4,
C, E.LK3

TM3/1019

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 84

12



Chamber Road
(Narth Wes! side)

Fram a poml 14
melres soulh wesi of
ils junction with
Grange Averue o a
paint 10 melres
rmarth easi of i
junction with Grangs
Awenue

#1 Anry Time

A, B1, B3, B4,
G, ELLKS

(Both sides)

Fram iis junclion
with Grange Avenue
for a distance of 10
metres in a north
easledy dirsction

#1 Arry Time

& B, B3, B4,
G, E.LKS

Coniston Aven e
(Both sides)

Fram ils junclion
with Grange Awvenus
for a distance of 10
melres ;m a soulh
wesbedy direclion

#1 Anry Time

&, B, B3, Bd,
iC, E.LKS

Safeyrk e
(Both sides)

Fram ils junclion
with Grange Awvenus
for a distance of 10
melrez in a north
easiedy dirsction

#1 Anry Time

A, B1, B3, B4,
G, ELLKS

TM3/1019

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 85

13



rosd  belwesn T2
and T range

SeEnise
{ Both sades]

Fram ils junclion
with Grange Avenue
for a distance of 10
melres ;n a soull
westerly direction

Un-named access | A Aoy Time

C, EKS

A, B1, B3, B4,

(Both =ad=s)

Fram ils junclion
with Grange Avenue
for a distance of 18
medres in & primarily
rarh easiedy
direcian

A1 Ay Time

C, EKS

A, B1, B3, B4,

APPROVAL

Decizion maker

Signed

Cabmet Member,
Ermwronmerial Sarvces

Caled 050352020

In consullation with

IH ot _h.,_:l'_._‘l.
Signed:
Deputy Chisl Execifive

Dabed: £ March 220

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 86

14



TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

15

Page 87



AT B |

APPENDIX B

16.05.22

c\371

g:\common\dec_re

TM3/1019

16

Page 88



A L W LT L i e e e e
e T L1

I ———
Pl [ i 1 L il
_T1] L =re
.
e 5

11111111

Page 89




COPY OF REPRESENTATIONS

Dear Sirs
Doc Ref: TM3/1019-Grange Avenue — 18/02/22

Thank you for your letter detailing the proposed introduction of parking restrictions on Grange
Avenue.

Whilst | very much welcome the proposals | would wish to make the following observations.

1 The most egregious example of inconsiderate parking is on the pavement for the entire
length from Selkirk Avenue down to Fernholme Court. Vehicles are parked nose-to-tail
for the entire length at some point on most days. The vehicles are parked on the
pavement, tight against the wall, making pedestrian access, along that stretch,
impossible.

2 Conversely, the entire stretch of the Avenue from Chamber Road to Selkirk Avenue (in
front of the recently built houses) for which you are proposing to be no parking hardly
ever suffers from inconsiderate parking.

I kindly request that you review the proposals to take account of my observations above.

Hi

In regards to the above proposal we are opposing to this, as it will befall more problems, we are in
an area where households have multiple vehicles , hence we appreciate each other in parking
sensibly with no issues. This proposal will effect everyone in various ways.

So we urge you to please scrap this proposal.

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

18

Page 90



Your ref; DEMGSTMINDS
Dear Sir or Madam

RE: The Oldham Area Consolidation Order Prohibition of Waiting Amendmant Order
2022

We are the owners and occupsers of 181 Grange Avenue and we would like 1o formally
object to the proposal to place double yellow lines outside of and at the side of our house.

We have lived in this house for 30 years. We are now in our 80°s and your propasal will
mean that we will not be able to park outside of our home or at the side of our home, This
will have a significant impact on our health, wellbeing and maobility. When retuming to our
home with our shopping bags we will have lo park some distance from our home carrying
heavy bags.

Thera are already problems parking in this area. There is insufficient parking for the houses
and residents. For many years wa andured parking problems when the Ansalm/St Augusting
Schoal was opposite our home as the school had insufficient parking for the stall. Al no time
did the Coundl suggest double yellow lines.

As a Council you allowed a developer to build houses oppaosite our homes. Grange Avenue
is & namow Street and, appears o have been designed not to have house opposite each
other, This was a sensible approach that did not crowd the area but the Coundil did not
follow this approach with regard to the housas that have been built opposite my home. They
have effectively created the problems with the vehicles in the area and your solution is o
further panalise the residents that have lived in this area for many years. | have noted that
there are no plans to place double yellow lines on Chamber Rd a busy road and yet you
want to place double yellow lines on the residential side street.

The houses on Grange Avenue are family homes and many have more than 1 car. Some of
the new houses do not have enough room o park mone than 1 car and they say their
garages that are not large enough for a car. By allowing these houses to be built in this way

the Council has added to the parking problems and the proposal (o place double yellow lines
outside the homes on my sida of the street will exacerbate the parking problém.

In addition, some people will ignare the lines and park over the linés. This will mean that
whilst | will not be able to park outside my home other people may do 50. How does the
Council plan to monitor the no wailing restrictions?

The double yellow lines will also have an impact an the value of my property should | wish fo
sall my hame. No one wanis 1o buy a house where they are unable to park outside or at the
side of the housa.

As this area is not naar a town or any businesses the parking restrictions will only affect the
residonts living in the area and we and my neighbours clearly need to park their vehices.

An alternative 1o the double yellow lines might be for the residents to have parking permits
which | know has been put in place at the housing association properties at the Manchester
Road end of Grange Avenue.

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

19

Page 91



Dear Mr. Evans,

I am writing both in response to the proposed prohibition of waiting — Grange Avenue,
Werneth and on behalf of my parents, Mr. and Mrs. Tavarozzi of 70 Grange Avenue.

My parents would like it known that they object to the above proposal, and in particular to the
intention to introduce double yellow lines directly in front of their property (70 Grange Avenue).

My father drives, and is a Disabled Badge holder. My mother is not very mobile. They are
fortunate, as their property has a drive, but it is difficult (and takes time) for my father to get in and
out of the car, open the drive gates etc., and this would be a source of great stress for my parents.

A more general concern is that if the proposed parking restrictions were introduced then there
would be a constant “battle” for the available spaces that would result in a great deal of ill feeling /
conflict / unease amongst and between neighbours.

My parents are fully understanding of the need to maintain health and safety within the area, but
we would ask that a better solution is found than adding restrictions in what is already a crowded
area.

With Best Regards,

To Whom it may concern

Re: Proposed Prohibition of Waiting — Grange Avenue, Oldham

In relation to the letter, you sent dated 18" February and the proposal to add prohibition of
waiting outside my house XXX Grange Avenue, Oldham, OL8 4EJ. | understand part of
the logic behind the reason, but | have a number of issues | would like to address
regrading this plan.

Firstly, is this a course of action throughout the borough of Oldham and is it consistent with
all similar roads in the borough. There are several roads that have the same issues as
Grange Avenue and are many that are even worser than Grange avenue throughout the
borough.

This plan will affect me, and my family greatly as where are we expected to park our cars if
we cannot park them outside our own house. The street is already congested with cars
and with you removing the space outside my house, can you suggest where | would park
my cars? | have elderly people living at the house and this will cause them undue stress to
walk a distance to the house from wherever we can find a space to park my car. The only
solution I can think for this problem is if you allow or contribute towards the affected
residents building a drive outside their homes for them to park there cars.

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

20

Page 92



The implementation of the proposed prohibition of waiting outside my house will also have
the negative affect of the value of my property. If anytime in the future | look at selling the
property, the value will be less than other properties on the street as anyone who
purchases the property will not be able to park the car outside the house. Is the council
prepared to compensate me for the loss in value of the property?

The residents that the proposed prohibition of waiting will directly affect pay their road tax
and council tax at the same rate as all the residents on the street but they will be at a
direct disadvantage to everyone else in terms of finding a place to park there cars.

| sincerely hope that the council take into consideration all the points raised above about
this matter and address them in the meeting that will take place before arriving at a
decision.

Regards

My comments regarding the above are as follows:

I am strongly against the proposal. This will cause more parking problems for myself and other residents in the
proposed area. I do not have a dipped pavement/ curb where I have access to the front garden so that I can park
my care due the street lamppost in the way and also cost of lowering the pavement/ curb.

Secondly and most important I need 24 access in front of the house as my wife has difficulty walking and her
sight is poor (she as a blue badge number for your reference is :N9H82H00153Y1023.

I hope my comments are taken into consideration and I look forward to hearing from you.

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

21

Page 93



| am writing in regards to the proposed double yellow lines to be placed outside both our houses 72
and 74 Grange Avenue. | am against this proposition and bitterly disappointed in why this has been
brought up. Firstly, | would just like to point out why the reasons for implementing this was not
attached along with the rest of the proposition? You have mentioned that we would have to
physically go to your office between the mentioned times to view the reasons for this propesition.
My question is why? | do not see the point of it. If you are a solicitor then my understanding is all
details/information, if you are on a criminal case for example, you would expect to have it present
with you i.e. in discovery as opposed to chasing around place to place as to why for example a
certain person is being charged with such and such a crime. It does not make any sense. At least a
brief reason as to why this has been suggested should have been mentioned.

| can partially understand why you would want to put double yellow lines on the corners simply to
avold accidents etc. Mevertheless, the real guestion is if the motorists are causing accidents why do
these particular people not look and observe before making a manoeuvre. Basically, why are these
people even sat behind a steering wheel. This is basic Highway Code and driving sta ndards, which
motorists should follow even after they have passed their practical driving test. In addition, this is
why we have horns, which is clearly stated in the Highway Code as to press it to alert other motorists
our intentions. The list is endless and | do not need to detail everything down. My point is if certain

minor individuals are responsible for causing accidents ete, then why do the rest of the people living
an the street have to suffer? If someone is responsible for their actions then they are the ones who
should be punished, not the innocent who get dragged into unnecessary predicaments. It is totally
unfalr and unjust for someone else to take the blame for someone else’s crime and live with the
Comsaq UEnces,

Putting double yellow lines cutside my houses will mean we will not be able to park our cars outside
the house and thus would have to park on the opposite side causing obstruction to the oncoming
two-way traffic. Which also means when bringing the shopping/groceries inside will be a dangerous
task in itself because if you imagine the back door being open and you are taking the shopping out of
the car would it not be dangerous and risky for the person doing so having to cross the road with
shopping in your hands. This will also potentially cause an overcrowding issue as this street is over
§5% Pakistani and in general are very family erientated and have lots of relatives. If this proposition
goes ahead then where are the family relatives meant to park their cars? It just does not work out.
The way the houses are designed and built there is no way we could make a driveway out of the
front gardens as it is just too small.

One big issue will be property value, If there are double yellow lines outside the property i.e. No
parking then the house price will drop and also making it difficult to sell the houses in the future.
There would be no interest in the properties. What do we da in this situation? Will the council
compensate us for the loss? My dad scrimped and saved to acquire these houses and now their
worth seems to be hovering in thin air,

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

22

Page 94



One of the main reasons for not inscripting the lines outside our houses is because my elderly father
has a disability in his leg after a fall in around 2009. His leg has never been right since however he
can still drive properly without trouble, Despite this, | do not want my elderly dad nor does anyone
b be crossing roads with his limp in his leg. It makes his life difficult. He does not need this trouble in
his life at this age. He does not claim any disability benefits as he has never been in the benefits
scene and has always toiled his entire life and paid all his taxes throughout his working life.

Usually you would expect double yellow lines to be printed outside four-way cross road junctions on
busy roads, however our house is at a non-busy T-lunction and therefore | cannot see why there
would be any need of assigning these lines on. From what | can remember as a child, | have never
seen an accident happen here and | have ahways lived here since approximately 1985. Therefare, you
can imagine why there is no nead for these lines.

The way things are on our street everyone parks their cars in front of their own houses and if they
have surplus cars then they end up parking in their rear gardens or elsewhere on the street and not
in front of the adjacent neighbours house causing them an inconvenience. The last thing we would
want is to park cutside someone else’s house and them kicking off with us. We really do not want
that even though we could turn around and say we pay road tax as well as you do but the morality of
this whole situation will not be there and thus needs to be avoided wherever possible.

We also have a neighbour living in the bungalow at number 70 Grange Avenue who has a disabled
granddaughter. She is physically challenged and is on a wheel chair, which must be pushed by
someone other than herself, Where the proposed yellow lines are going to be put that is the exact
same spot where the disability bus parks in order to drop off the little girl. 5o please if you could also
consider this girl before making any final decisions.

On a final note please | urge you to take our situation very seriously and please do not print the
proposed 10m by 10m double yeliow lines outside our houses and please consider the devastating

impact it will have on parking, my father's situation, and all the above mentioned points. Indeed, |
believe you will be just in making your decision.

Thank you very much for your time and help and hopefully will hear from you soon

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 95

23



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

©

Oldham

Council

Report to TRO Panel

Ladhill Lane and Oak View Road (Ladhill
Bridge), Greenfield — Objections to Traffic
Regulation Order

Portfolio Holder:
Councillor A Chadderton, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods

Officer Contact: Deputy Chief Executive — People and Place

Report Author: Andrew Cowell, Traffic Engineer
Ext. 4377

16 June 2022

Reason for Decision
The purpose of this report is to consider two objections to a proposal for prohibition of waiting
restrictions to be introduced at Ladhill Bridge, Greenfield.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the objections be dismissed and the proposal introduced as advertised in
accordance with the schedule in the original report.

Page 97



TRO Panel 16 June 2022

Ladhill Lane and Oak View Road (Ladhill Bridge), Greenfield — Objection to Traffic
Regulation Order

1

11

1.2

13

2.1

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

TM3/1019

Background

A report recommending the introduction of prohibition of waiting restrictions at Ladhill
Bridge, Greenfield,, was approved under delegated powers on 5" October 2021. The
proposal was subsequently advertised and two letters of objection were received.

A copy of the approved report is attached at Appendix A and a copy of the objections are
attached at Appendix B.

The proposal was promoted to address issues with obstructive parking at Ladhill Bridge.
The nearby Cricket Club has no dedicated car park for visitors. This results in an increase
in parking activity on the roads nearby when matches are played, including in the vicinity
of the bridge. The areas of concern are at each side of the bridge. Due to the physical
width restriction at the bridge, which is formed with raised kerbs, motorists require space
to align their vehicles with the bridge and the kerbs in order to negotiate it correctly. When
vehicles are parked close to the bridge this either restricts this movement and forces
motorists to mount the kerbs, or on occasions leads to the bridge becoming impassable
especially for wider vehicles.

Objections

Two objections were received from local residents. In summary, the objectors state that
they do not support the proposal as it would make the parking situation worse for them.
They would prefer the bridge to be closed to vehicular traffic and would only support the
proposal if a residents parking scheme was introduced. One resident also stated that they
would not support the scheme unless it was extended further along Oak View Road to
address other obstructive parking issues.

The Council appreciates that there is a lack of on-street parking for some residents.
However, the Council is not responsible for providing on-street parking but has a duty in
respect of road safety matters and maintaining traffic flows.

Unfortunately, it would not be possible to introduce a residents parking scheme in this
area. Such schemes are reserved for areas which suffer from extraneous parking over a
much wider area.

The lengths of restriction cannot be extended under this scheme now that the legal and
democratic process has started. Any restrictions recommended on Oak View Road would
have to be promoted under a separate scheme.

Proposals to close the bridge to vehicular traffic have been met with significant resistance

in the past and there are currently no plans to revisit this issue. Therefore, as the bridge
currently remains open to vehicular traffic, officers feel that the restrictions are necessary.

Options/Alternatives

g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 98 ?



3.1

Option 1 — Introduce the proposed restrictions as advertised.

3.2 Option 2 — Do not introduce the proposed restrictions.

4 Preferred Option

4.1 The preferred option is Option 1.

5 Consultation

5.1 These were detailed with in the previous report.

6 Comments of Saddleworth South Ward Councillors

6.1 The Ward Councillors have been consulted again and Councillors Woodvine and Sheldon
still support the proposal.

7 Financial Implications

7.1 These were dealt with in the previous report.

8 Legal Services Comments

8.1 These were dealt with in the previous report.

9 Co-operative Agenda

9.1 In respect of introducing prohibition of waiting restrictions at Ladhill Bridge, there are no
Co-operative issues or opportunities arising and the proposals are in line with the
Council’s Ethical Framework.

10 Human Resources Comments

10.1 None.

11 Risk Assessments

11.1 None.

12 IT Implications

12.1 None.

13 Property Implications

13.1 None.

14 Procurement Implications

14.1 None.

15 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

3

Page 99



15.1 These were dealt with in the previous report.

16 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications

16.1 These were dealt with in the previous report.

17 Equality Impact Assessment Completed?

17.1 No

18 Key Decision

18.1 No.

19 Key Decision Reference

19.1 Not applicable.

20 Background Papers

20.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance with
the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972. It does not include
documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined by the Act:
None.

21 Appendices

21.1 Appendix A — Approved Mod Gov Report
Appendix B - Copy of Representations

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

4

Page 100



APPENDIX A

APPROVED MOD GOV REPORT

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 101



©

Delegated Decision Oldham

Council
Proposed Prohibition of Waiting — Ladhill Lane
and Oak View Road (Ladhill Bridge), Greenfield

Report of: Deputy Chief Executive — People and Place

Officer contact: Andy Cowell, Traffic Engineer
Ext. 4577

4 October 2021

Purpose of Report
The purpose of this report is to consider the introduction of prohibition of waiting
restrictions in the vicinity of Ladhill Bridge, Greenfield.

Recommendation
It is recommended that prohibition of waiting restrictions are introduced in accordance
with the plan and schedule at the end of this report.

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 102



Delegated Decision

Proposed Prohibition of Waiting - Ladhill Lane and Oakview Road {Ladhill
Bridge), Greenfisld

i

1.1

1.2

1.3

21
22

4.1

2.1

Background

Ladhill Bridge is sitluabsd & the junction of Oak View Road, Ladhill Lare and
Greenbridge Lane in a conservaion area of Saddleworth. It = a histonc bridge
ard 5 a lisled skuchire which carmes both mobor vehicdes and pedesinans,
alibough there is no dedicaied foobway on the brdge isell. There are balh
width and weighl restrictions applied o the bridge. Greenfield Crickel Club is
lacated immediaiely south of the bridge and a represeniative from the Club has
made a regues for wailing resiricions (o be installed in the vicinity of the bridge
o deal withi absbructive parking.

The Crickei Club has no dedicated car park for wvisilors. This resulls in an
increase in parking advity on the roads nearby when malches are plaged,
including in the vicinity of the bridge. The areas of concermn are at sach side of
fthe bridge. Due o e physical width resticlion al $he bridge, which is formed
with raised kerbs, molorisis require space o align their vehides with the bridge
ard the kerbs in order o negoliabe il comectly. Whan vehicles are parked clase
o the bridge this esther restricts this mavement and forces matonsts 1o mount
the kerbs, or on cocasions keads (o the bridge bacoming impassable aspacially
for wider wehicles.

The proposed resiictions on the west side of the bridge will also protect two
dropped kerbs used by pedestians. I approved, the conservafion type variant
of the road markings will be applied which ame less visually inrusive.
Dptionsifliernatives

Opfion 1: To approve the recommendalion

Oipfion 2: Mol o approve the recommendalion

Preferred Option

The prefered oplion is Cplion 1

Justification

The proposal will ease iraffic flows across e bridge, profed the raised kerbs
from damapge caused by wehicles and prevent dropped kerbs fom being
obstrucied.

Consultaticns

GHLP. Vies - The Chisl Constable has besn consulled ard has no commeant
an this praposal.

Paga 2ol B grcommenide: el 3SR 190083

ThiCL Bos4

TM3/1019

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 103



5.2

5.3

5.4

.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

TLGM. iew - The Dwector General has been consulled and has no commenl
an this praposal.

G.M. Fire Service View « The Counly Fire Officer has been consulted and has
no comment on this propasal.

MWW, Ambulance Service View = The County Ambulance Officer has been
consulled and has no comment on this proposal.

Comments of Saddleworth Souwth Ward Councillors

The Ward Councillors Bave besn consulled and Councillor M Woodvine has no
cammeni and will be happy 1o support a TRO in this area.

Fimancial Implications

The cost of intraducing the Order is shown below:

E
Adverlisemenl of Crder 1,200
Introduciion of Road Markings S0
Total 1,760
Annual Mainterance Cost [cakoulaied Al 2021, 100

The adwerlising and road marking oosts of £1,700 will be funded from the
Highways Operations = Unity budget.

The annual manienance costs esfmated ot £100 per annum will be med from
the Highways Operatiors budget. I there are pressures in this area as the
financial year progressss, (he Disclorale will have o manage ils resources o
ermure fal there i no adverss overall variance al the financial year end.

(Migpel Howeard)

§
#.1

Legal Services Comments

The Coundal must be satisfied thal il is expedient 1o make the Traffic Regul ation
Oirder in order 10 avaid danger o persons or alber raffic using the mad or any
ather road or for preventing the kelibood of any such danger arising, or Tor
preventing damage 1o the moad or lo any building on or near the moad, or Tor
faciitating the paszage on lhe road or any other road of any dass of iraffic,
inchiding pedesifans, or for prevenling the uss of the road by vehicul ar traffic
af a kind which, or its use by vehicular traffic in a manner whidch, is unsuitable

hmmpﬂhﬂuzuﬂmdmmﬂud the road or adjaining propery or Tor
presering or improwving the ameniSes of the area through which the road runs.

PagalclB R ke ] 18EF

[ T B Y |

TM3/1019

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 104



g2 In addition to the above, under seclion 122 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984, it shall be the duty of the Council so o exerciss the funclions conferred
an them by the Acl as o secure the expeditious. convenienl and safe
mavement of vehicular and obher btraffic (including pedesirians) and the
provision of suilable and adequale parking fadlities an and off the highway.
Fegard must also be had to the desirabiily of securng and manianing
reasonable access o premises, the effec on the amenities of any locality
affecled and e imporancs of regulaling and restricling the use af roads by
heavy commensal vehicles so as o presenve or improve the amenities of the
areas through which the roads run, the siralegy produced under section 80
Emdronmental Prolection Acl 1990 (e national air quality skaieqgy), the
impartance of fadclilating the passage of public service vehicles and ol securing
the =alety and convenience of persans using of desiring o use such vehicles
and any ather maiters appearing o e Counci lo be relevanl. (A Evans)

g Co-operative Agenda

9.1 In respect of this proposal there are no Co-operalive issues or opportunities
arising and the proposals are in line with the Councils Ethical Framework

10 Human Resources Comments

101 Mane.
11 Risk Assessments
111 Hone.

12 IT implications

121 Hone.

13 Propery Implications
131 Mane.

14 Procurement implications

141 HNone.

15 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications

18.1  Energy - Ni

16.2 Transparl = The proposal will improve access along the heghway.
163 Pollution — Mil.

1654 Consumplion and Uees of Resources — Mil.

Paga 4 ol B p-commonidec e 3G 10083
Thic oS

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 105



16.5

Eull Envirorment ~ Nil.

166 MNalural Emdronment - Mil.

16.7  Health and Salety — The proposal will improve safety for road users.

16 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications.

16.1  Hil

17 Equality impact Assessment Completed?

17.1  Ha

18 Key Decision

18.1  Ha.

18 Key Decision Reference

18.1 Mol applcable.

20 Background Papers

201 The following = a list of background papers on which this report s based in
accordance with ®e requirements ol SecBon 100(1) of the Local Gavernment
Act 1972, N do=s nol indude documents which would disclose exempl or
confidential information &5 defined by lhe At
Mone.

21 Proposal

211 It s proposed thal a Traffic Regulation Order be introduced in accordance with
the following schedule and drawing number.

l;:;::;u goommonkdec_reci3 110871

TM3/1019

g:\common\dec_rec\371

16.05.22

Page 106

10



-
-
-

-
o e e e
-
———
A
=

Cricket Ground

Proposed
Prohibition
of Walting
s

Proposed TRO

Ladhil Bridge, Greenfieid
_”.n_ll._.l.llﬂ_
HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING & s g ﬂ
Hauthurw Fauns, C i 0L 1HY Rl By o 1:300 ATIAAHBAZN
Py S ? b L] Dt

THO2 TEAM REEOURCE\TraM: & Mewvsork Man'ld Trafico\Traffc Fikes DMSITM FlasiTM3 TROSITM3- 1084 Ladhill Bridge, Greenksid - PoWDrowing 1. day

16.05.22

c_rec\371

g:\common\de

TM3/1019

11

Page 107



Scheduls

Drawing Mumber A7Ti84/1 6421

HAdd ta the Didham Bosough Council (Saddieworth Area) Consolidation Order 203

Column 1

Column &

Column X

Coluwrmin 4

Column &

ltem Mo

Length of Road

Duration

Ezempticns

Mo Loading

Ladkill Lare,
Gres=nlield
South Side

Fram iis junclion
with Ladhill Bridge
for a distance of 18
medres in an
easierdy direclion

&1 Any Time

Ladhil Lane.
Greenfieid
Morth Side

Fram ils junclion
with Ladhill Bridge
for a distance of B
meires in an
easiedy direclion

A1 Any Time

Crak View Road
Gres=nlield
South Side

Fram iis junclion
wilh Ladhill Bridge
fior a distanoe of 18
mebnes in a weshsdy
direciion

A1 Any Time

Cak View Road
Gres=nlield
Mlorih Sidee

Fram iis junclion
wilh Ladhill Bridge
for a distance of 17
mebnes in a wesisiy
direciion

&1 Any Time

Faga Fol B
T oS

TM3/1019

gleomrreniaee el ISR

g:\common\dec_rec\371

TH0ET]

16.05.22

Page 108

12



APPROVAL

Descision makor

Sigred: Ciated: 05, 103021
.-""Ii. |:::II | |I |
|_':-. EI'II_ ; L . e
Cabimel Member,
Meighbourhoods

In consulation with

Signed: John Lamb Cated: 0. 10,2021
Interin Dhrectar of
Envronmerial Sarvices

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

13

Page 109



APPENDIX B

COPY OF REPRESENTATIONS

Dear Sir/ Madam
Re Traffic Regulation Order; Reference UM/20568 .

I am writing to inform you of my objection to the implementation of the above
traffic regulation order. Whilst | agree that there are traffic and parking issues
either side of the Pack Horse Bridge at Ladhill Lane and Oakview Road just
putting yellow lines will not resolve the problem for residents unless other
measures are taken.

| have lived at Primrose Bank since 1977and during that time there have been
numerous housing developments in Greenfield and surrounding areas with the
consequent increase in traffic in the village. The Packhorse Bridge is used as a
cut through for cars and vans ( the latter frequently ignoring the weight
restrictions) | am amazed that this 18th Century Bridge is still standing given
the volume of traffic that goes over it. Even though there is 2 now a 20mph
speed limit this is frequently ignored and cars speed past houses at Primrose
Bank and along Greenbridge Lane. This is especially true between 7am and
9:30am and 3pm and 6: 30pm.

The other major issue for residents is parking and just putting double yellow
lines at the Pack Horse Bridge will not resolve this problem and would make it
worse as cars would park on the road at Primrose Bank.

(1) Parking at Primrose Bank has always been a problem during the Cricket
Season but previously this was only at a weekend. Now there are matches,
practice sessions and other activities on almost a daily basis. | have no
objections to any of the activities at Greenfield Cricket Club but they should
resolve the parking issues for visitors to their club.

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

14

Page 110



(2)The housing development across from Primrose Bank does have some
resident parking. However we still have cars from that development parking
on the road at Primrose Bank on a regular basis.

(3) We also have cars parking at Primrose Bank when families are visiting the
park or going walking. As with the cricket | have no objections to these
activities but it has a major impact on residents who frequently come home
and have nowhere to park.

(4) Cars often park very inconsiderately e.g. across residents gates or on the
kerb. There is also a serious safety issue when cars park further down on

Greenbridge Lane as space for cars to pass is severely restricted. Emergency
vehicles would not be able to get through e.g. ambulances and fire engines.

| would support the introducing of yellow lines either side of the Packhorse
Bridge alongside other measures i.e.

(1) Closing the Pack Horse Bridge to cars and vans.

(2 )Provision of a residents parking area at Primrose Bank and along
Greenbridge Lane where it is safe to do so.

Yours faithfully

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 111 o



The Environment Group Solicitor to Council
CIVIC CENTRE

West Street

Oldham

OL11UL

Planning LIM/20568 - Consultation closes 21/3/22
Traffic regulations Oak view Road and Ladhill Lane Bridge.

| am in agreement, that waiting/parking prohibit regulations are required around this
bridge. The congestion of vehicles particularly at weekends can be ridiculous. Safety of
pedestrians are at risk.

However, the area proposed doesn't go far enough and should be extended.

There are also problems with vehicles frequently mounting the pavement, parking and
completely blocking pedestrian walk ways on Oak view road. | appreciate the High way
code changes should require vehicles to give way to pedestrians, bikes, horses on the bridge
but it doesn’t always happen, particularly at night when the light is poor and the traffic
speeds across. Drivers of vehicles are often impatient, maybe a priority as to the flow of
traffic would be a help.

Yours faithfully

TM3/1019 g:\common\dec_rec\371 16.05.22

Page 112 0



Agenda Item 11

©

Oldham

Council

Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map and Statement
Modification Order

S257 Town and Country planning Act 1990 —

Diversion of Definitive Footpath 119 Saddleworth, Treetops
Close, Dobcross, and S53A Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
Modification of the Definitive Map & Statement

Portfolio Holder:
Councillor J Stretton, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods

Officer Contact: Gordon Anderson, Head of Highways &
Engineering

Report Author: Liam Kennedy, PRoW Officer

16™ June 2022

Purpose of Report

To seek approval to the making of a Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map
and Statement Modification Order for Footpath 119 Saddleworth, Treetops
Close, Dobcross as detailed in the report.

Executive Summary

The Council has received an application from a resident of Treetops Close,
Dobcross for the diversion of part of Footpath 119 Saddleworth. The footpath
is situated adjacent to the rear gardens on the west side of Treetops Close,
Dobcross.

The applicant has planning consent FUL/348134/21 (approved 12/04/2022) for
the change of use of the landscaped area to the west of these properties to
garden. The proposed diversion will skirt the proposed gardens, follow part of
an existing footpath which forms part of the access to Holy Trinity C of E Primary
School and terminate on Woods Lane .

The footpath cannot be diverted unless the Council approves the proposal and
the respective order is confirmed unopposed or confirmed by the Secretary of
State.

Page 113



Recommendation

It is recommended that the Council make a Public Path Diversion and Definitive
Map and Statement Modification Order for the diversion of Footpath 119
Saddleworth under Section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
and section 53A of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as detailed in the
report and officers be authorised to carry out the necessary procedures with a
view to confirming the Order in the event that no objections are made to the
Order.

Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map and Statement Modification Order

TM2 240 S257 Diversion FP119 SADDLEWORTH 16/05/2022

Page 114



S257 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 - Diversion of Footpath 119 Saddleworth,
Treetops Close, Dobcross and S53A Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 Modification of the
Definitive Map and Statement

1.1.

1.2

1.3

1.4

TM2 240

Background

In July 2017 the Traffic Regulation Order Panel granted approval to divert part of
Footpath 119 Saddleworth at Treetops Close, Dobcross pursuant to planning
application PA/340311/17. The diversion was required to enable residents of
Treetops Close to incorporate an area of Council owned land into their rear gardens.
The footpath is situated adjacent to the rear gardens on the west side of Treetops
Close, Dobcross.

A Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map and Statement Modification Order was
made and several objections to the Order were received. Attempts were made by
the Council and the applicant to resolve the objections without success and in
September 2019, as required when there are objections to a Public Path Diversion
and Definitive Map and Statement Modification Order, the Order was referred to the
Secretary of State for determination under reference ROW/3237390. One of the
objectors requested an accompanied site visit with the Planning Inspector dealing
with the Order. However due to the various coronavirus lockdowns during 2020-21,
the site visit did not take place until June 2021, by which time the planning
permission PA/340311/17 had expired and the Order could no longer be
implemented.

Despite this, the Inspector continued to determine the Order. A copy of the
Inspector’s decision is attached at Appendix 1. He was unable to confirm the Order
as the planning permission had expired but in his written decision he stated that in
light of the time taken to arrange an accompanied site visit it was right for him to
consider the substantive merits of the Order so that the Council could make an
informed decision whether to resubmit the Order at some future date. He concluded
that it would have been expedient to confirm the Order had it remained valid. The
expectation is therefore that if a similar planning permission is obtained and a similar
Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map and Statement Modification Order is made
and objected to, the Order is likely to be confirmed by the Secretary of State, as the
previous Order would have been if the planning permission had not expired.

Based on this decision, the applicant has obtained planning consent FUL/348134/21
(approved 12/04/2022) for the change of use of the landscaped area to the west of
these properties to garden. The proposed diversion will skirt the proposed gardens,
follow part of an existing footpath which forms part of the access to Holy Trinity C of
E Primary School and terminate on Woods Lane. The footpath cannot be diverted
unless the Council approves the proposal and the respective Order is confirmed
unopposed or confirmed by the Secretary of State.

Current Position

S257 Diversion FP119 SADDLEWORTH 16/05/2022

Page 115



2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

TM2 240

It is considered appropriate to divert the footpath in the light of guidance from
Government regarding the problems of landowners and the public where rights of
way pass through gardens. It should be noted that this guidance is draft only. The
proposal will move to path the perimeter of the gardens. The proposal to divert the
path was included in the planning application and this has received approval. The
footpath specification is as follows;

- Footpath to be 1,500mm in width along entire length, with a 5% gradient.

- Path to be edged in 150mm x 38mm x length tanalised timber edging boards,
screwed to 50mm x 50mm x 450mm pointed timber pegs every 1000mm to
outside of footpath set 50mm under finished ground level.

- Sub-base to be DTp Typel granular sub-base, to a well consolidated finished
depth of 100mm, incorporating a non-woven geo-textile liner.

- Walking surface to be 50mm, consolidated depth, after compaction on self-
binding gravel/limestone fines.

- Any boundary fences to be installed as required by Oldham Council Planning
Dept as defined in the planning approval.

In paragraph 7 of his decision the Planning Inspector stated that it would be
unrealistic, impractical and undesirable for the approved development to co-exist
with the continued presence of the public right of way.

The schedules to this report contain requirements relating to the detail of the
diverted path which it is considered will make the path and the surroundings
acceptable to users of the path the landowners and the Council.

Proposal

The route of Footpath 119 Saddleworth is shown on attached plan (764/A4/231/1)
and follows points A-B. The path commences off Woods Lane following a north
westerly direction then proceeding east to its junction with Treetops Close,
Dobcross. The description of the current route is given in Schedule 1.

The diverted path is also shown on the plan and follows points B-C-D. The
description of the diverted route is given in Schedule 2.

If the order is confirmed it will be necessary to modify the Definitive Map and
Statement for Footpath 119 Saddleworth. The Council have an obligation to
continuously review the Map and Statement. The Public Rights of Way (Combined
Orders) (England) Regulations 2008 allow the Order-making Authority to make a
Combined Order for a diversion proposal and Definitive Map and Statement
Modification. In light of the above it is considered that this is appropriate in this case.
The current wording for the Definitive Statement is given in Schedule 3 and the
amended wording is given in Schedule 4. See Appended documents.

S257 Diversion FP119 SADDLEWORTH 16/05/2022

Page 116



3 Options/Alternatives

3.1 Option 1: To approve the recommendation.
3.2 Option 2: Not to approve the recommendation.
4 Preferred Option

4.1 The Preferred option is to approve Option 1.

5 Informal Consultation

Parish Council
51 None received.

Footpath Societies

5.2 PNFS have raised concerns regarding the accessibility of the proposed diverted
route. This in particular relates to the gradient of the diverted route being greater
than that of the existing route. The inclusion of steps will be part of the lease and
detail of the construction will be forwarded to PNFS at a later date, once received.

Ward Councillors
53 None received.

Landowners

5.4 The only affected landowner is the applicant.

6 Financial Implications

6.1 The applicant has previously paid the standard diversion fee. Due to circumstances
the advertising costs will be covered by the PRoW budget.

(James Postle)

7 Legal Services Comments

7.1  Section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 enables the Council to
authorise the stopping up or diversion of any footpath or bridleway if it is satisfied that
it is necessary to stop up or divert the footpath or bridleway in order to enable
development to be carried out in accordance with planning permission granted under

TM2 240 S257 Diversion FP119 SADDLEWORTH 16/05/2022

Page 117 °



8.1

9.1

10

10.1

11

111

12

12.1

13

13.1

TM2 240

the Act. In the event of objections the application will be referred to the Secretary of
State who must be satisfied that it is necessary to stop up or divert the footpath or
bridleway and who has a discretion as to whether to confirm the stopping
up/diversion. In the exercise of that discretion the Secretary of State is obliged to
take into account any significant disadvantages or losses flowing directly from the
stopping up/diversion which have been raised and must also take into account any
countervailing advantages to the public, along with the planning benefits and the
degree of importance attached to the development. He must then decide whether
any such disadvantages or losses are of such significance or seriousness that he
should refuse to confirm the stopping up/diversion. As stated above, a Planning
Inspector has previously decided that it would be expedient to confirm this diversion
in the event of any objections. That decision should carry significant weight in the
event of objections to the latest proposals.

(A Evans)

Co-operative Agenda

Not applicable.

Human Resources Comments

None.

Risk Assessments

None

IT Implications

None.

Property Implications

None.

Procurement Implications

None.

S257 Diversion FP119 SADDLEWORTH 16/05/2022

Page 118 °



14 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications

14.1 None.

15 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications

15.1 None.

16 Equality Impact Assessment Completed?

16.1  Not Applicable

17 Key Decision

17.1  No.

18 Key Decision Reference

18.1 Not applicable.

19 Background Papers

19.1 There are no background papers for this report.

20  Appendices

Appendix 1 - Planning Inspectorate Order Decision in respect of Order
ROW/3237390 dated 23 June 2021

TM2 240 S257 Diversion FP119 SADDLEWORTH 16/05/2022

Page 119



Appendix 1: Plan and Schedules

ORDNANCE SURVEY LICENCE: © Crown copyright a

nd database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey licence 0100019668

Issues

~ Playground

i

©

Treetops Close, Dobcross

Footpath 119 Saddleworth
Wildlife and Countryside Act

Recreq
Definitive Footpath 119 Saddleworth (Part): (A-B)
— = Proposed Diverted Route: (B-C-D)
— Existing Footpath
—— Existing Bridleway
Rev| Revision details By |chkJApp) Date

Client Title

I_ Oldham MBC

Project

Diversion of Public Highway Combined Order
5119 Highways Act 1980 Diversion of Public

8

art) and

¢ and \ct 1981°S53(2)
o!.:gg:;gl!‘l Drawn by Date  |Purpose of issue Modification o;}g?er?'lgﬂ?mve Map ané
05/22 Order Plan
Place and Economic Growth Checked E{( %asl/ezz Scale at A4 size rawing No. Iﬁev-
HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING Rovoved by Dot 1:1250 764/A4/2311
Henshaw House, Cheapside, Oldham OL1 1NY GS 05/22

TM2 240

S257 Diversion FP119 SADDLEWORTH

CPROWWPROW diversionp 110 Sadd\p 119 5add.dgn

16/05/2022

Page 12

0



Schedule 1

Description of Existing Footpath Route — Drawing 764/A4/231/1

Existing FP 119 Saddleworth from a point A OS Map Reference 398969 406397 on the
detached footway at the junction of Woods Lane and Delph New Road, Dobcross in a
northerly direction for a distance of 63 metres to point B 398939 406452 adjacent to the

turning head adjacent to 3 Treetops Close.

TM2 240 S257 Diversion FP119 SADDLEWORTH 16/05/2022

Page 121



Schedule 2

Description of Proposed Diverted Footpath Route — Drawing 764/A4/231/1

Footpath 119 Saddleworth from point B (OS Map Ref 398939 406452) adjacent to the
turning head adjacent to 3 Treetops Close, Dobcross in a south westerly direction for a
distance of 22 metres to point C (OS Map Ref 398932 406431) on the footpath to Holy Trinity
Church of England Primary School, Dobcross, then in a south easterly direction along the
footpath for approximately 55 metres to point D (OS Map ref 398977 406404), having a
minimum width of 2 metres, as shown on the attached map.

TM2 240 S257 Diversion FP119 SADDLEWORTH 16/05/2022

10

Page 122



Schedule 3

Current Definitive Statement

District and
page number

Page
Number

Status

Length

Description

Comments

Saddleworth
Footpath 119

6D

Bridleway +
F.P.

1400
metres

Footpath
commencing
at its junction
with  Woods
Lane Dobcross
and
proceeding in
a north
westerly
direction to
Sycamore
Cottages and
continuing as
Bridleway in a
north westerly
then northerly
direction to its
junction  with
Gatehead
Road with a
branch
footpath
proceeding
northward at
the Mill Pond
to its junction
with Platt Lane

3m wide
and 1.2m
wide —
public path
order
creation —
confirmation
date
29.05.88

TM2 240

S257 Diversion FP119 SADDLEWORTH

16/05/2022

Page 123

11



Schedule 4

Modification of Definitive Statement

Footpath commencing
at its junction with
Woods Lane Dobcross
(OS Map ref 398977
406404) and
proceeding in a north
westerly direction on
the footpath from Holy
Trinity  Church  of
England Primary
School, Dobcross for a
distance of 556m to (OS
Map Ref 398932
406431) then
proceeding in a north
easterly direction for a

distance of 22mto (OS
Map Ref 398939
406452) and
continuing as

Bridleway in a north
westerly then northerly
direction to its junction
with Gatehead Road
with a branch footpath
proceeding northward
at the Mill Pond to its
junction with  Platt
Lane

District and Page Status | Length Description Comments
page number | Number
Saddleworth 6D Bridleway | 1414 2m wide public
Footpath 119 + F.P. metres path order
creation —

confirmation
date 29.05.88

TM2 240

S257 Diversion FP119 SADDLEWORTH

16/05/2022

Page 124

12



' The Planning Inspectorate

Order Decision
Site visits made on 2 November 2020 and 8 June 2021

by D M Young JP BSc (Hons) MA MRTPI MIHE

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
Decision date: 23 June 2021

Order Ref: ROW/3237390

This Order is made under Section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (the
Act) and is known as the Oldham Borough Council (Part of Footpath 119 Saddleworth)
Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map and Statement Modification Order 2017.

The Order is dated 4 October 2017 and proposes to divert the public right of way shown
on the Order plan and described in the Order Schedule. If confirmed, the Order will also
modify the definitive map and statement for the area, in accordance with Section
53(3)(a)(i) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, once the provisions relating to the
diversion come into force.

There were three objections outstanding when Oldham Borough Council submitted the
Order to the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs for
confirmation.

Summary of Decision: The Order is not confirmed.

Procedural Matters

1.

I was originally scheduled to undertake an accompanied site visit on 9
November 2020. However, on 31 October it was announced that England
would be entering a four-week lockdown commencing on 6 November. I
therefore decided to undertake an unaccompanied site visit at short notice on
November 2. However, following a complaint from one of the objectors?, an
accompanied site visit was re-arranged for June 2021. Representatives from
the Council in addition to Mr Davenport, were present at that visit.

The Main Issues

2.

The Order was made because it appeared to the Council that it was necessary
to divert the footpath to enable development to be carried out in accordance
with planning permission PA/340311/17 (the planning permission). This
permission which, involves the change of use of a strip of land to the rear of 1-
3 Treetops Close to residential curtilage, expired on the 26 January 2021.

Section 257 of the Act requires that, prior to confirming the Order, I must be
satisfied that it is necessary to divert the footpath to allow the development to
be carried out in accordance with a valid planning permission which has not
expired by the passage of time or invalid on some other ground.

Although the merits of the development are not at issue, it should not be
assumed that because planning permission has been granted necessitating a
path closure that confirmation of an extinguishment order will automatically
follow. I have a degree of discretion to consider the merits and disadvantages
of the proposed closure in relation to the facts that pertain and, in reaching a

! Mr Davenport

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 125


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Order Decision ROW/3237390

decision, I am entitled to take into account the effect the Order would have on
those whose rights would be extinguished by it.

As mentioned above, the planning permission has expired. As a consequence,
there is not currently a valid planning permission and the Order cannot be
confirmed. Nonetheless, in light of the time it has taken to arrange an
accompanied site visit, it is right that I consider the substantive merits of the
Order, so that the Council can make an informed decision whether to resubmit
the Order at some future date.

Reasons

Whether it is necessary to divert the footpath to enable the development to be
carried out

6.

The Order concerns a small section of Footpath 119 which runs adjacent to the
rear boundary of 1-3 Treetops Close in the village of Dobcross. The plan
approved pursuant to the now expired planning permission shows the
application site extending to the surfaced school route at the bottom of the
slope. I am thus satisfied the development would encompass the existing line
of Footpath 119.

In some situations, it is possible for a public footpath to pass through a private
garden without conflict and it should not be assumed that the two must
inevitably be mutually exclusive. However, in the circumstances that apply
here, I accept it would be unrealistic, impractical and undesirable for the
approved development to co-exist with the continued presence of the public
right of way given the rather obvious privacy/security implications to the
occupiers of Nos 1-3. I therefore agree that extinguishment of the Order route
is reasonably necessary to enable the development to be carried out

On the basis of the land registry plans submitted with the Council’s statement,
I am satisfied that the proposed alignment shown the Order plan would be over
land registered with the Council?>. I have noted Mr Davenport’s comments to
the contrary but, it is not my role to determine land ownership matters or to
decide whether he is in adverse possession of the land in question, or to
consider the merits of his doing so. At the site visit the Council again re-
iterated the point that the diversion would not encroach onto Mr Davenport’s
land.

Whether the development is substantially complete

9.

When I visited the area there was no evidence to suggest that any works in
connection with the planning permission have commenced. On that basis, I am
satisfied that the development is not substantially complete.

The effect the Order would have on those whose rights would be extinguished by it

10. In reaching a conclusion on this Order, I am required to weigh the advantages

to be conferred by it against any disadvantages or loss likely to arise, either to
members of the public generally or to persons whose properties adjoin or are
near the existing path.

11. The first point to make is that the diversion of the footpath would be fairly

modest in its extent and there would be no significant inconvenience arising

2 Title No. GM380350

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 1262


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Order Decision ROW/3237390

from the additional seven metres. When I conducted my first site visit, I noted
the existing route was narrow, tightly enclosed and very muddy. By contrast,
the proposed route would be along a wider, surfaced path which would result in
significant betterment especially in the winter months. I acknowledge the
gradient between points B and C may well prove challenging for the less
mobile. However, it has to be recognised that many footpaths in the area
traverse steep gradients such is the local topography.

12. Moreover, and with the benefit of having walked both the existing and
proposed route, I do not consider there will be any material effect on the
public’s enjoyment of the route nor the privacy or security of neighbouring
occupiers.

Other Matters

13. Those opposing the Order have raised various concerns many of which relate to
planning or private land ownership matters none of which are relevant to my
consideration of this Order under Section 257 of the Act.

14. Mr Hampar on behalf of the Peak and Northern Footpaths Society, has pointed
out that the proposed route would not terminate on an adopted highway. The
Council accepts this and has suggested the issue could be remedied by
extending the proposed route from Point C to A. As this modification would
simply extend the proposed route along an existing Council owned path, I am
satisfied that the Order could be modified without prejudice to any party.

Conclusions

15. Having regard to these and all other matters raised in the written
representations, I conclude that it would have been expedient to confirm the
Order had it remained valid. However, for the reasons given in paragraph 5 of
this Decision, I am unable to confirm the Order.

Formal Decision

16. The Order is not confirmed.

D. M. Young

Inspector

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 127


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Order Decision ROW/3237390

‘ ~ \ ( | \ A ‘ &

i G %
\ || Sycamdre

Piayground

Ak
- )y\ e e Dwe‘@%«q

: e FOOtpath'tq b&abandoned
T, \ N
i

3 \ Existing Footpath. o
-\ Existing Bridleway .~ »\\
N |
NN

A
A Note this plan to be read in conjupctioh
C s Wwith ancillary work drawing :
R0 . I | Springmeadow | \ : oy
T,"_V ’n"f X = ) Dj ! Sun-yr-Afon
i : J \
- — 2 J -

Oldham MBC Tite

U
P4 s

|
>

: Diversion of Part of
Unitypartnership

Footpath 119 Saddleworth

Stye 3t Al zze

HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING Craming Ne
memshaw Houze, Creastize, Ca@nam ILI INT Qe o 1:1250 764/A4/219/1

-

ALEX BOUGATEF
GROUP SOLICITOR

qee

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 1284



https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

	Agenda
	7 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	8 Representations to Proposed Disabled Persons Parking Places Order – Various Locations
	9 Grange Avenue, Werneth – Objection to Traffic Regulation Order
	10 Ladhill Lane and Oak View Road (Ladhill Bridge), Greenfield – Objections to Traffic Regulation Order
	11 S257 Town and Country planning Act 1990 –  Diversion of Definitive Footpath 119 Saddleworth, Treetops Close, Dobcross, and S53A Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 Modification of the Definitive Map & Statement
	Order Decision


